
Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 

Date//Time:  Tuesday, March 26, 2019 @ 7:00 p.m.   

Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 

   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 

Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Denise 

Duranczyk, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson,  Tom Majewski, 

Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, Timothy Riley, and Ben Heili  

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 

(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 

the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 

hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  

 

2. Minutes and Reports: 

Planning Commission (2/11/2019); Business Park North Committee (7/9/2018); Landmarks 

Commission (2/13/2019); (Finance 2/26/2019); Parks & Rec (3/4/2019)  

 

 

3. Public Comment Period:  

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. March 12, 2019 Council Minutes 

B. R-35-2019- Resolution Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue Operator 

Licenses  

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

5. O-9-2019- Amending Chapter 70-185 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to 

Forty-eight Hour Parking by creating subsections 4, 5, and 6 (Public Safety approved 3-0 on 

February 27, 2019)        SECOND READING 

 

6. O-10-2019- Amending Chapter 70-191 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to three 

hour parking by creating subsection 5 (Public Safety approved 3-0 on February 27, 2019)             

          SECOND READING 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

7. R-36-2019- Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of $7,430,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, 

Series 2019A (Finance meets March 26, 2019)  

 

 

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA-AMENDED 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 

regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 

  

 

mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us


8. R-37-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) write off the 2013 – 2017 

Delinquent Personal Property tax bills that have proven to be uncollectable for a total amount 

of $2,006.77 (Finance meets March 26, 2019)  

 

 

9. R- 38-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement 

with Advance Construction, Inc. for the 2019 Street and Utility Reconstruction Contract 1-

2019 (Finance approved 5-0 on March 12, 2019. Utilities meets March 26, 2019.)   

 

10. R-39-2019- Adopting a Public Participation Plan for the City of Stoughton Wisconsin (Planning 

Commission approved 7-0 on March 11, 209)  

 

11. Discussion and possible action regarding funding request to raze the structures at 801 

Coolidge Road 

 

12. R-40-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve the Licensing 

Agreement for Communications Attachments to Utility Poles Between City of Stoughton and 

MCImetro Access Transmission Services Corp (Utilities Committee approved 6-0 on 

October 15, 2018)  

 

13. Discussion and possible action regarding purchasing the property located at 2464 County HWY A 

***The Common Council may convene in closed session pursuant to State Statute 19.85 (1) (e ) for 

the purposes of deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the invest of public 

funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons 

require a closed session*** 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 

aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 

Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Tom Majewski  

 





Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date//Time:  Tuesday, March 26, 2019 @ 7:00 p.m.   


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Denise 


Duranczyk, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson,  Tom Majewski, 


Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, Timothy Riley, and Ben Heili  


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 


the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


2. Minutes and Reports: 


Planning Commission (2/11/2019); Business Park North Committee (7/9/2018); Landmarks 


Commission (2/13/2019); (Finance 2/26/2019); Parks & Rec (3/4/2019)  


 


 


3. Public Comment Period:  


 


4. CONSENT AGENDA 


A. March 12, 2019 Council Minutes 


B. R-35-2019- Resolution Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue Operator 


Licenses  


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


5. O-9-2019- Amending Chapter 70-185 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to 


Forty-eight Hour Parking by creating subsections 4, 5, and 6 (Public Safety approved 3-0 on 


February 27, 2019)        SECOND READING 


 


6. O-10-2019- Amending Chapter 70-191 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to three 


hour parking by creating subsection 5 (Public Safety approved 3-0 on February 27, 2019)             


          SECOND READING 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


7. R-36-2019- Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of $7,430,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, 


Series 2019A (Finance meets March 26, 2019)  


 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA-AMENDED 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us





8. R-37-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) write off the 2013 – 2017 


Delinquent Personal Property tax bills that have proven to be uncollectable for a total amount 


of $2,006.77 (Finance meets March 26, 2019)  


 


 


9. R- 38-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement 


with Advance Construction, Inc. for the 2019 Street and Utility Reconstruction Contract 1-


2019 (Finance approved 5-0 on March 12, 2019. Utilities meets March 26, 2019.)   


 


10. R-39-2019- Adopting a Public Participation Plan for the City of Stoughton Wisconsin (Planning 


Commission approved 7-0 on March 11, 209)  


 


11. Discussion and possible action regarding funding request to raze the structures at 801 


Coolidge Road 


 


12. R-40-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve the Licensing 


Agreement for Communications Attachments to Utility Poles Between City of Stoughton and 


MCImetro Access Transmission Services Corp (Utilities Committee approved 6-0 on 


October 15, 2018)  


 


13. Discussion and possible action regarding purchasing the property located at 2464 County HWY A 


***The Common Council may convene in closed session pursuant to State Statute 19.85 (1) (e ) for 


the purposes of deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the invest of public 


funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons 


require a closed session*** 


 


ADJOURNMENT 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 


Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Tom Majewski  


 








Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


Monday, February 11, 2019 at 6:00 pm 
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, 
WI. 
 


Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Todd Barman; Matt Bartlett, Vice-Chair; Greg 


Jenson; Phil Caravello; Tom Robinson; and Tom Selsor 


Members Absent: 
Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning & Development and Michael Stacey, Zoning 


Administrator 


Press: None 


Guests: Eli Pitney; Kevin Urso; Dennis Steinkraus; Jim Bricker; Steve Erdahl; Ken Leler; Trent 


Nelson; and Emily Bahr. 


 


1. Call to order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 


2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of January 14, 2019.   


Motion by Jenson to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Bartlett.  Motion carried 7 – 0. 


 


3. Council Representative Report.  Bartlett stated there are proposed ordinances coming back for a 


second reading tomorrow night. 


 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 


Scheel gave an overview of current developments as outlined in the packet of materials.  Jenson 


questioned the status of an ordinance for the keeping of bees.  Mayor Swadley stated the attorney 


has it on his list and he hopes to have something by the end of the year. 


 


5. Request by Dan Glynn, Parks and Recreation Director to construct a restroom facility at 


Rotary Park, 316 S. Sixth Street. 


Scheel explained the request.  Mayor Swadley explained how the facility would be funded 


including planning with the Rotary organization. 


 


Motion by Bartlett to approve the resolution as presented, 2nd by Robinson.  Motion carried 7 – 


0. 


 


6. Request by Eli Pitney for a conditional use permit to allow vehicle repair and outdoor 


display (automobile sales) uses including requirements related to a group development (two 


or more non-residential uses in a building) at 1005 N. Page Street. 


Jenson recused himself from this agenda item. 


 


Scheel gave an overview of the request. 


 


Eli Pitney explained the intent of the request. 


 


Bartlett questioned vehicle parking in the front of the building.  Eli Pitney stated that front parking 


area would only be for vehicle sales not for vehicles in need of repair. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


2/11/19 


Page 2 of 3 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Motion by Bartlett to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use resolution as 


presented, 2nd by Robinson.  Motion carried 6 – 0. (Jenson recused himself) 


 


7. Request by Kevin Urso to rezone the property at 117 Ashberry Lane from SR-4 Single 


Family Residential to TR-6 Two Family Residential. 


Scheel explained the request. 


 


Kevin Urso explained the intent of the request. 


 


Selsor questioned whether the units would be rentals or owner occupied.  Kevin Urso stated they 


would be owner occupied.  He plans to zero lot line the structure upon completion. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


Steve Erdahl spoke in opposition with storm drainage concerns. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Barman questioned the zoning of lots in the area and how the setbacks compared from two family 


to single family.  Scheel stated the setbacks are comparable.  Scheel noted the City does not 


regulate covenants rather the developer does. 


 


Kevin Urso explained he has made attempts to contact the developer regarding covenants and 


stated the lot is large, will easily accommodate a duplex and storm drainage from the structure will 


be directed toward the street. 


 


Caravello questioned when the duplex to the north was built.  Scheel stated in 2018 and the site 


has yet to be stabilized with grass. 


 


Motion by Bartlett to recommend the Common Council approve the rezoning ordinance as 


presented, 2nd by Selsor.  Motion carried 7 – 0. 


 


8. Request by Forward Development Group for Kettle Park West Phase II conceptual plan 


support. 


Dennis Steinkraus gave an overview of the request. 


 


Jim Bricker explained the concept plan changes and parkland requirements.  Approximately 9.7 


acres of parkland is required. 


 


The commissioners support the changes made. 


 


Motion by Jenson to approve the resolution to support the conceptual plan, 2nd by Bartlett.  


Motion carried 7 – 0. 


 


 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


2/11/19 


Page 3 of 3 


 


 


9. Proposed ordinance amendment to repeal zoning code section 78-205(10), number of land 


uses per building. 


Scheel explained the amendment. 


 


Barman indicated there is a typo in the staff summary. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Motion by Jenson to recommend the Common Council approve the ordinance amendment as 


presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 7 – 0. 


 


10. Future agenda items. 


Zoning ordinance amendments and Kettle Park West phase 2. 


 


11. Adjournment.  Motion by Jenson to adjourn at 7:10 pm, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 7 – 0. 


 


 


Respectfully Submitted, 


 


Michael P. Stacey 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2019\Planning Minutes  2-11-19.docx 







Business Park North Committee Minutes 
Monday, July 9, 2018 – 5:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Second Floor, Public Safety Building, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton WI. 


 


Business Park North Members Present:  Denise Duranczyk; Greg Jenson; Rodney Scheel; 


Laura Trotter and Shelly Edgington 


Absent and Excused:  


Staff Present: Zoning Administrator, Michael Stacey 


Press: None 


Guests: John Bieno; Ron and Kathy Grosso; Aaron Falkosky; Tim Swadley 


 


1. Call to order.  Scheel called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm. 


 


2. Elect Chair.  Duranczyk nominated Jenson as Chair.  There were no other nominations.                   


Jenson was unanimously approved as Chair 5 – 0.  Jenson took over the meeting as Chair. 


 


3. Elect Vice-Chair.  Trotter nominated Edgington as Vice-Chair.  There were no other 


nominations.  Edgington was unanimously approved as Vice-Chair.               


 


4. Request by Ron Grosso for site plan approval to construct 2 buildings at 300 Business 


Park Circle 


Scheel gave an overview of the request. 


 


Motion by Duranczyk to recommend the Stoughton Plan Commission approve the request 


as presented, 2nd by Trotter.   


 


Jenson stated he would like the applicant to make an effort to minimize the removal of 


existing trees toward the bike path to the east. 


 


Motion carried 5 – 0. 


 


5. John Bieno, TJK Design Build requests site plan approval for a building addition at 


Edge One, 161 Business Park Circle. 


Scheel gave an overview of the request.   


 


John Bieno explained the intent of the addition and answered questions. 


 


Motion by Duranczyk to recommend the Plan Commission approve the building addition as 


presented, 2nd by Trotter.  Motion carried 5 – 0. 


 


6. Discuss dissolving the Business Park North Committee. 


Scheel explained the history of the Business Park North covenants. 


 


The Committee agrees that the covenants are redundant and support dissolving the 


Committee. 







Business Park North Meeting Minutes 


7/9/18 


Page 2 of 2 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\03-26-19\Committee Minutes\02-BPN 7-9-18doc.doc 


 


 


Motion by Duranczyk to have the City Attorney investigate dissolving the Business Park 


North Committee, 2nd by Scheel.  Motion carried 5 – 0. 


 


7. Future agenda items.   


Review dissolving the Committee. 


 


8. Adjournment.  Motion by Duranczyk to adjourn at 5:45 pm, 2nd by Trotter.  Motion 


carried 5 – 0. 


 


 


Respectfully submitted, 


 


Michael P. Stacey 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\03-26-19\Committee Minutes\03-Landmarks Minutes 2-13-19.doc 


Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


Wednesday February 13, 2019 – 6:30 pm 


City Hall, Overland Room, Lower Level, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 
 


Members Present:  Peggy Veregin, Chair; Alan Hedstrom, Vice-Chair; Greg Pigarelli, 


Secretary; Kimberly Cook; Kristi Panthofer; and Todd Hubing 


Absent: Tom Majewski 


Staff: Michael Stacey 


Guests: Roger Springman 


 


1. Call to order.  Veregin called the meeting to order at 6:37 pm. 
 


2. Consider approval of the Landmarks Commission meeting minutes of January 10, 


2019.   


Motion by Pigarelli to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Hedstrom.  Motion carried 5 
– 0. 
 


3. Status of 2017 and 2018 local landmark grants. 
Veregin sent out letters to remind the 2 remaining grant recipients that their deadline for 
completion is coming up soon.  The remaining recipients that have not completed their 
projects are Eric Francksen, 327 E. Washington Street and Joseph Cabibbo, 404 S. Fifth 
Street. 
 


4. Discuss 2019 local landmark grants. 


Veregin provided updated letters which have been sent out to Local Landmark owners.  The 
deadline for submittals is April 5, 2019. 
 
Panthofer arrived at 7:42 pm 


 


5. Status update for Power Plant Building. 


Veregin stated the RDA is seeking control of the power plant building.   
 
Veregin questioned if the commission is in favor of Landmarks Commission involvement 
with the RDA relative to the power plant building.  The commission is in favor of being at 
the table. 
 
Veregin plans to reach out to Mayor Swadley about a commissioner participating in the 
discussions related to the power plant building. 


 


6. Discuss status of 1892 High School. 


Veregin stated the coalition recently met with the School Board to try to get things back on 
track.  Nothing further to report. 
 


7. Local landmark status update for 148/154 E. Main Street, 118 N. Page Street and 515 E. 


Main Street. 


The commission reviewed a draft letter provided by Stacey which will be sent to the 3 
property owners.  A public hearing is being planned for April 11, 2019. 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


2/13/19 


Page 2 of 3 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\03-26-19\Committee Minutes\03-Landmarks Minutes 2-13-19.doc  


8. Discuss Linderud photo collection. 


Hubing stated all Linderud photos have been entered on the website: historicstoughton.org 
 
Hubing is working out some minor issues and the site is currently live. 
 
At some point, a link will be added at the City and Landmarks websites. 
 
The commission plans to show the website during a May (Preservation Month) Common 
Council meeting. 
 


9. Discuss 2018 Preservation Award. 
Veregin talked to Tony Hill about presentation of the award at a Common Council meeting.  
They are very excited about the award. 
 
The group discussed if the award will be a picture of the building as in the past.  Getting a 
good photo may be a challenge.  Stacey will try to get a picture of the building tomorrow. 
 
The commission decided this will be the 2019 Preservation Award and is planned to be 
presented at the April 9, 2019 Common Council meeting. 
 


10. Discuss local downtown district planning. 


Veregin stated she will need some time to find a good consultant that has experience in 
creating design guidelines. 
 
The Commission would like to meet with the RDA about their plans for downtown 
revitalization. 
 
Hedstrom would like the commission to start some outreach and education before hiring a 
consultant. 
 
Veregin questioned using a consultant vs the commission doing their own 
outreach/education.  Veregin would be willing to give a presentation to the public and has 
plans to contact Todd Barman who is also a Plan Commissioner to assist. 
 
Veregin stated the consultant could help create the request for proposals (RFP). 
 
Roger Springman joined the meeting to discuss the RDA downtown revitalization planning.  
Roger stated that Denise Duranczyk and Sharon Mason-Boersma have been spearheading this 
initiative.  They are planning their first meeting with the sub-committee on March 5th with 
RDA consultant Gary Becker.  The sub-committee also consists of 4 business members 
including Lucas Trow from McFarland State Bank.   
 
Finance Director, Jamin Friedl is the first point of contact for the revolving loan fund (RLF).  
There was a discussion about potential missed opportunities for owners that could seek tax 
incentives instead.  Veregin plans to reach out to those involved in the RLF. 
 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


2/13/19 


Page 3 of 3 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\03-26-19\Committee Minutes\03-Landmarks Minutes 2-13-19.doc  


Veregin plans to contact Denise Duranczyk about a joint meeting to discuss how we can all 
work together as there appears to be some overlap with some to the goals the RDA and 
Landmarks Commission are trying to achieve. 
 


11. Discuss Community Outreach. 


Cook explained the updates she created on the Landmarks Facebook page which will be 


ready to go live soon.  Cook has a list of topics but needs another picture from Panthofer. 


 


Stacey to check if the City has approved a social media policy yet. 


 


Panthofer stated Sustainable Stoughton will be having their annual fundraiser for Earth Day 


on April 27th at the Lagaret from 10:00 am – 5:00 pm.  Panthofer asked if the commission is 


interested in having a booth at the fundraiser.  The commission is interested in having a booth 


inside the building with commissioners taking turns in the booth. 


 


12. Commission Reports/Calendar.  


Nothing to report. 


 


13. Future agenda items. 


Earth Day booth approval 


 


14. Adjournment. Motion by Hedstrom to adjourn at 9:00 pm, 2nd by Hubing.  Motion 


carried 6 - 0. 


 


Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael Stacey 







City of Stoughton Finance Committee Minutes 


February 26, 2019, 6 p.m. 


Council Chambers, 321 S Fourth St, Stoughton, WI 


 


Present 


Denise Duranczyk, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson and Mayor Time Swadley 


 


Absent and Excused 


Pat O’Connor 


 


Others Present 


Finance Director Friedl and Deputy Clerk Christen 


 


Call to Order 


Duranczyk called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. 
 


 


Communications 


Director Friedl briefly discussed the audit adjustments made. 


   


Reports 


 Contingency Report 


 December 2018 Treasurer’s Report 


 January 2019 Treasurer’s Report 


No questions of Director Friedl 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


None 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


Approval of the February 12, 2019 Finance Committee Minutes 


Motion by Jenson, second by Johnson to approve the February 12, 2019 minutes. 


Motion carried 4-0. 


 


Discussion related to the year-end 2018 general fund financial results 


Journal entries to be made and the audit report to be completed. 


 


Discussion and possible action regarding revisions to the Debt Management Policy 


Committee directed Director Friedl to add the definition of “pay as you go” to the policy. 


 


Discussion and possible action regarding the termination of TID No. 3 


Motion by Johnson, second by Jensen to terminate TID 3 after April 15, 2019.  Motion carried  


4-0. 


 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
Review of financial reports and fund balances in the Library, Senior Center, and Food Pantry  


Funds 


 


Adjournment  


Motion by Duranczyk, second by Johnson to adjourn at 6:48 p.m. Motion carried 4-0. 







PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  
 
March 5, 2019 
7:00 PM  
Stoughton City Hall, Ed Overland Room  
 
Present: Alderpersons: Phil Caravello, Denise Duranczyk, Regina Hirsch, Ben Heili, Mayor Tim Swadley 
and Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn  
 
Guests: Emily Bahr  
 
1. Call to Order  
Meeting called to order at 7:00 pm.  
 
2. Approval of the Minutes from January 15,2019 
 
Motion to approve the minutes as presented by Duranczyk, seconded by Caravello.  
 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 


3. Communications 


Directors Report  


4. Review of Park Impact Fees (Discussion & Possible Action) 


 


Discussed cost analysis of Nordic Ridge Park, community vs neighborhood features/costs. 
 
Motion by Duranczyk, seconded by Heili to have Director Glynn explore cost of Park Impact Fee Study. 
 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 


5. Prioritization of Future Park Land & Trails Future (Discussion & Possible Action)  


 


Committee discussed many projects and future trails. Emily Bahr discussed the potential for her land 


to be sold or developed. 


 


6. Rotary Park Improvements (Discussion & Possible Action) 


 
Motion to approve the RFP for bathroom with changes in formatting and spelling by Duranczyk, seconded 
by Caravello.  
 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 


7. Bjoin Park Sport Court (Discussion & Possible Action) 


 


Discussion and direction was given to Director Glynn to see if sport court was feasible and cost 


effective. 


 


8. Future Agenda Items 


 







Emily Bahr property, Review RFP’s, 1St Right of Refusal for Racetrack Park land, Land 


Acquisitions, Baseball and Softball contracts, Park Design Guidelines 


 
8. Motion at 8.59 to adjourn by Duranczyk and seconded by Caravello.  
 
Motion carried unanimously 
 





		01-Planning Minutes  2-11-19.pdf

		02-BPN 7-9-18doc.pdf

		03-Landmarks Minutes 2-13-19.pdf

		04-Finance Minutes - Feb 26, 2019.pdf

		05-Park  Rec minutes 3-4-19.pdf






 


Public Participation Plan 


Amendment of the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan 


and 
Westside Neighborhood Plan pertaining to the Kettle Park West Neighborhood 


 
SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION 
 


The City of Stoughton acknowledges that land planning and development is a dynamic process. 


In order to maintain currency with overall general goals, policies and objectives of the adopted 


Comprehensive Plan, adopted sub-area plans pertaining to specific locations in the community 


may need to be created, amended or revised more frequently than the statutory decennial update. 


A key component of the state’s planning legislation is to assure that communities establish 


opportunities for local residents and community stakeholders to engage in community-wide 


comprehensive planning and sub-area planning processes. The City believes public participation 


will assure that resulting land use plans and development guidelines compliment and reflect the 


community’s vision, goals, and values. 


SECTION 2: PURPOSE 


Based on Section 66.1001(4)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, the purpose of this Public Participation 


Plan is to outline a procedure and framework for the plan amendment process: to foster 


opportunities for public discussion and communication; to disseminate information; and to 


engage with the Plan Commission and Common Council to evaluate and implement proposed 


plan amendments. 


SECTION 3: CONTEXT 


Planning of the Kettle Park West development started in 2009 and, after extensive public 


discussion, was approved in 2011. Initial phases of the project were implemented between 2011 


and 2016 through the adoption of the Westside Neighborhood Plan (subsequently incorporated 


into the City Comprehensive Plan), amendment of the Stoughton Urban Service Area, 


annexation, land divisions and construction of infrastructure to create the Kettle Park West 


Commercial Center, and the adoption of the Kettle Park West Preliminary Plat in 2016. 


In response to dynamic market and economic conditions, the 2017 update to the City 


Comprehensive Plan, and collaborative discussions with City leaders, Forward Development 


Group LLC (FDG), has formulated conceptual revisions to the Westside Neighborhood Plan to 


address land uses, park land dedications, and infrastructure improvements to maintain the 


viability of the KPW development as it progresses into the next phase of implementation. Since 


the City’s Comprehensive Plan incorporated the original vision of KPW as part of the Westside 


Neighborhood Plan, it is necessary for the City to consider and adopt amendments to the 


Comprehensive Plan to establish consistency between the plan and development entitlements 


(zoning and land division) that will be required for continued development of the KPW area. 







 


SECTION 4: POLICY GUIDELINES and PROCESS FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 


To foster public engagement in the planning process, the following guidelines will be 


followed by the City: 


 The City Plan Commission will provide policy guidance during the preparation of the 


Plan Amendment. The Plan Commission will meet at least once during the course of the 


amendment process and will provide an opportunity for public comment. 


 All Plan Commission meetings are open to the public and will be publicized in 


advance in accordance with statutory notice requirements. 


 City staff will prepare and disseminate information to the public on the proposed 


amendment by posting documents on the City’s website (www.ci.stoughton.wi.us) and 


by providing a complete printed copy to be made available for public inspection during 


regular business hours at the Stoughton Public Library. 


 Kettle Park West LLC will conduct a public event to provide an opportunity for 


interested individuals and organizations to obtain information, interact, and provide 


comment regarding the proposed amendment. Kettle Park West LLC (KPW) will 


maintain a summary of inquiries and communications received and KPW’s responses 


thereto which will be provided to City staff for dissemination. 


 The Plan Commission will review public comments from the public event and the 


proposed amendment and at their discretion, consider adoption of the plan amendment.  


The Plan Commission will recommend the Common Council conduct a public hearing and 


consider adoption of the plan amendment as approved by the Plan Commission. 


 The Common Council, following a public hearing, announced by a Class 1 notice in 


the City’s Official Newspaper of record, published at least 30-days prior to the public 


hearing, may consider adoption, revision, or denial of the plan amendment. Following 


the public hearing, revisions to the proposed amendment will be made as determined 


by the Common Council. 


 


 


 


 


 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





S:\Planning\MPS\Comprehensive Plan\2019 Update\20190312 Draft Public Participation Plan.docx 








CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


Date:  February 27, 2019 


 


To:  Denise Duranczyk 


Finance Committee Chair 


   


From:  Rodney Scheel 


  Planning & Development Director 


 


Michael Stacey 


  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 


 


 


Subject: Funding Request to Raze the Structures at 801 Coolidge Road 


 


In November of 2018 we became aware of a home and garage at the above named address that 


are in very poor condition and have been deemed unsafe for human habitation.  Details 


summarized below: 


 


 An interior inspection was done by Planning & Development staff including law 


enforcement officers; 


 A portion of the roof for the home has been open for an extended period of time and mold 


has taken over inside of the structure; 


 Gas and water services were disconnected; 


 The owner of the home was asked to leave the premises and has moved out; 


 Electric service was disconnected; 


 Associated Bank is in the foreclosure process to acquire the property but it could be 


several months before that happens; 


 Raccoons and cats have been seen entering and exiting the home; 


 There appears to be 2.5 years of delinquent property taxes; 


 A raze order has been issued to the current owners on Feb 14, 2019 giving them 30 days 


to raze the structures or the City has the authority to raze the structures; 


 An estimate to repair the home was acquired in the amount of $168,700; 


 An estimate to raze the structures (home and garage) including site restoration has been 


acquired in the amount of $23,520; 


 Attorney fees thus far are $1,886.00; 


 Bids will be necessary to develop a firm amount for razing; 


 We have about 31 hours of staff time involved; 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





 Attorney Dregne has indicated a special charge can be attached to the property to recoup 


costs. 


 


We’ll need Common Council approval to move forward with razing of the structures since these 


costs are not budgeted.   


 


Another option, though not recommended, is to do nothing and wait for Associated Bank to take 


over the property at which time we’d hope they will raze the structures. 


 


 


 


Please let us know if you have any questions.    
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


cc. Jamin Friedl, Director of Finance 


 Tim Swadley, Mayor 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


S:\Planning\MPS\Committee Memo's\Finance\Finance Memo 801 Coolidge Rd.doc 








 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 
RESOLUTION TO THE STOUGHTON UTILTIES COMMITTEE AND THE STOUGHTON 


COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve the Licensing Agreement for 


Communications Attachments to Utility Poles Between City of Stoughton and MCImetro Access 


Transmission Services Corp. 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Approved 6-0 


 
Fiscal Impact: None. 


 
File Number: 


 
R-40-2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
March 26, 2019 


 


WHEREAS, Wisconsin Statute 196.04 requires the utility provide access to and third-party use of electric 


utility poles, subject to the reasonable conditions and compensation for that access and use, with licensing 


agreements to be regulated by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, and 


 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities was contacted by a representative for MCImetro Access Transmission 


Service Corp., a telecommunications provider, and was requested to provide our standard Licensing 


Agreement for Communications Attachments to Utility Poles for their company to review, and 


 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities’ existing standard Pole Attachment License Agreement was last updated 


in 2002, and  


 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities staff worked with our attorney, Anita Gallucci of Boardman & Clark 


LLP, to bring the 2002 license agreement revision to current standards, and  


 


WHEREAS, your Stoughton Utilities Committee met on October 15, 2018 to review, approve, and 


recommend approval of the revised Licensing Agreement for Communications Attachments to Utility 


Poles, with such changes necessary to finalize the agreement as are acceptable to and recommended by 


our legal counsel, now therefore  


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby directed and authorized to approve the Licensing Agreement for Communications Attachments to 


Utility Poles Between City of Stoughton and MCImetro Access Transmission Services Corp.    


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     







City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


RESOLUTION TO THE STOUGHTON UTILTIES COMMITTEE AND THE STOUGHTON 


COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve the Licensing Agreement for 


Communications Attachments to Utility Poles Between City of Stoughton and MCImetro Access 


Transmission Services Corp. 


Committee Action: Approved 6-0 


Fiscal Impact: None. 


File Number: R-XXX-2019 Date Introduced: March 26, 2019 


WHEREAS, Wisconsin Statute 196.04 requires the utility provide access to and third-party use of electric 


utility poles, subject to the reasonable conditions and compensation for that access and use, with licensing 


agreements to be regulated by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, and 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities was contacted by a representative for MCImetro Access Transmission 


Service Corp., a telecommunications provider, and was requested to provide our standard Licensing 


Agreement for Communications Attachments to Utility Poles for their company to review, and 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities’ existing standard Pole Attachment License Agreement was last updated 


in 2002, and  


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities staff worked with our attorney, Anita Gallucci of Boardman & Clark 


LLP, to bring the 2002 license agreement revision to current standards, and  


WHEREAS, your Stoughton Utilities Committee met on October 15, 2018 to review, approve, and 


recommend approval of the revised Licensing Agreement for Communications Attachments to Utility 


Poles, with such changes necessary to finalize the agreement as are acceptable to and recommended by 


our legal counsel, now therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby directed and authorized to approve the Licensing Agreement for Communications Attachments to 


Utility Poles Between City of Stoughton and MCImetro Access Transmission Services Corp.    


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Timothy Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:        Override Vote 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 15, 2018 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  2 


Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities 
Committee that were approved by the Stoughton Finance Committee, and recommended to the Stoughton 
Common Council: 


• Proposed Stoughton Utilities 2019 budget and five year (2019-2023) Capital Improvement Plan 
(CIP)  


Update on the Utilities Director position recruitment and transition/interim management plan:  
Chairperson Erdman, Mayor Swadley, and Stoughton Utilities staff discussed transition plans.  An ad hoc 
committee consisting of members of the Stoughton Personnel Committee, Utilities Committee Chairperson 
David Erdman, and Stoughton Utilities employee Sean Grady met to review the position description and 
propose possible modifications, as well as discuss Interim Director plans and the timing of posting the 
position opening.  The revised Utilities Director position description was approved by the Stoughton 
Personnel Committee and Stoughton Common Council earlier in October.     


Changes to the City of Stoughton ordinance relating to the supervision of the Utilities Director were 
recommended by the Stoughton Personnel Committee, reviewed by the City Attorney, and approved by the 
Stoughton Common Council earlier in October.   


A handout was provided that outlined the proposed schedule.  The Utilities Director position has been 
posted, and applications will be accepted through November 9, 2018.  Interviews are scheduled to occur in 
late-November or early-December, with a goal of extending a contingent offer by the week of December 21, 
2018.  It is expected that the new Utilities Director will begin the week of January 21, 2019. 


Discussion followed.  Questions arose regarding the committee’s involvement.  Section 2-286 of the 
Stoughton Code of Ordinances was reviewed, and discussion followed regarding the timing of this 
involvement.  The ad hoc committee will discuss this further.   


Pole Attachment License Agreement revisions for a new licensee:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented 
and discussed a revised pole attachment license agreement that is currently undergoing legal review.  This 
agreement is based on our existing license agreements for other licensed parties with attachments on our 
poles, with minor updates to the language surrounding insurance, costs, procedures, etc. as recommended 
by our legal counsel.  Discussion followed.  Motion by O’Connor, the motion seconded by Kallas, to approve 
the revised Pole Attachment License Agreement, with such changes necessary to finalize the agreement as 
are acceptable to, and recommended by our legal counsel, and recommend approval to the Stoughton 
Common Council at a future meeting.  The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Real estate listing of the vacant land located at 3201 McComb Rd:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented 
and discussed the history of the vacant land, and informed the committee of the intent to market this land 
for future development.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Ackerman, to 
approve the listing of 10.683 acres of vacant land located at 3201 McComb Road, to direct staff to solicit 
proposals from commercial real estate brokers, with such proposals to be reviewed and approved by the 
Stoughton Finance Committee and Stoughton Common Council at a future meeting, and to bring all offers 
to purchase the land to the Stoughton Utilities Committee for their review and approval.  The motion carried 
unanimously 6 to 0. 


Stoughton Utilities Lead Awareness pamphlet and distribution strategy:  Stoughton Utilities staff 
presented and discussed a draft pamphlet containing educational materials, including testing and filter 
resources, to be provided to customers who may have lead service laterals.  Staff discussed the distribution 
plans.  Discussion followed.  The committee requested that staff continue to research funding assistance 
programs for the replacement of privately owned lead water services. 



bhoops

Highlight







Execution Version 


LICENSING AGREEMENT FOR 


COMMUNICATIONS ATTACHMENTS TO UTILITY POLES BETWEEN 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


AND 


MCIMETRO ACCESS TRANSMISSION SERVICES CORP.







Execution Version 


i 


INDEX 
Page 


RECITALS .................................................................................................................................. 1 
AGREEMENT ............................................................................................................................. 1 
ARTICLE 1:  DEFINITIONS ...................................................................................................... 1 
1.1 Affiliate ............................................................................................................................ 1 
1.2 Attaching Entity ............................................................................................................... 1 
1.3 Attachment ....................................................................................................................... 1 
1.4 Attachment Fee ................................................................................................................ 1 
1.5 Climbing Space ................................................................................................................ 1 
1.6 Communications Facilities............................................................................................... 1 
1.7 Communications Service ................................................................................................. 2 
1.8 Engineering Standards ..................................................................................................... 2 
1.9 Make-Ready Work ........................................................................................................... 2 
1.10 Occupancy........................................................................................................................ 2 
1.11 Overlash ........................................................................................................................... 2 
1.12 Permit ............................................................................................................................... 2 
1.13 Permit Application ........................................................................................................... 2 
1.14 Pole .................................................................................................................................. 2 
1.15 Post-Construction Inspection ........................................................................................... 2 
1.16 Pre-Construction Survey .................................................................................................. 2 
1.17 Riser ................................................................................................................................. 3 
1.18 Tag ................................................................................................................................... 3 
1.19 Utility Facilities ............................................................................................................... 3 
1.20 Wireless Facilities ............................................................................................................ 3 
1.21 Wireless Service............................................................................................................... 3 
ARTICLE 2:  SCOPE OF AGREEMENT .................................................................................. 3 
2.1 Grant of License ............................................................................................................... 3 
2.2 Permitted Use ................................................................................................................... 3 
2.3 Parties Bound by Agreement ........................................................................................... 3 
2.4 Permit Issuance Conditions.............................................................................................. 3 
2.5 Reserve Capacity ............................................................................................................. 3 
2.6 No Interest in Property ..................................................................................................... 4 
2.7 Licensee’s Right to Attach ............................................................................................... 4 
2.8 Necessity of Authorizations ............................................................................................. 4 







ii 


2.9 Utility’s Right over Poles................................................................................................. 4 
2.10 Expansion of Capacity ..................................................................................................... 4 
2.11 Other Agreements ............................................................................................................ 4 
2.12 Overlashing ...................................................................................................................... 5 
ARTICLE 3:  FEES AND CHARGES ........................................................................................ 5 
3.1 Fee Schedule .................................................................................................................... 5 
3.2 Annual Attachment Fee ................................................................................................... 5 
3.3 Payment............................................................................................................................ 5 
3.4 Late Charge ...................................................................................................................... 6 
3.5 Change in Fees/Charges ................................................................................................... 6 
3.6 Payment of Make-Ready Work ....................................................................................... 6 
3.7 Advance Payment ............................................................................................................ 6 
3.8 Determination of Charges ................................................................................................ 6 
3.9 Work Performed by Utility .............................................................................................. 6 
ARTICLE 4:  SPECIFICATIONS ............................................................................................... 6 
4.1 Installation and Maintenance of Communications Facilities ........................................... 6 
4.2 Tagging ............................................................................................................................ 6 
4.3 Interference ...................................................................................................................... 7 
4.4 Protective Equipment ....................................................................................................... 7 
4.5 Violation of Specifications .............................................................................................. 7 
4.6 Effect of Failure to Exercise Access Rights .................................................................... 7 
4.7 Removal of Nonfunctional Attachments ......................................................................... 7 
ARTICLE 5:  PRIVATE AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE ............................................. 8 
5.1 Necessary Authorizations ................................................................................................ 8 
5.2 Lawful Purpose and Use .................................................................................................. 8 
5.3 Utility’s Rights ................................................................................................................. 8 
5.4 Effect of Consent to Construction/Maintenance .............................................................. 8 
ARTICLE 6:  PERMITTING AND NOTIFICATION PROCEDURES .................................... 8 
6.1 Permit Required ............................................................................................................... 8 
6.2 Service Drops ................................................................................................................... 9 
6.3 Permits for Modifications or Overlashing ....................................................................... 9 
6.4 Pre-Construction Survey .................................................................................................. 9 
6.5 Utility Review of Permit Application .............................................................................. 9 
6.6 Expedited Process ............................................................................................................ 9 







iii 


6.7 Performance of Make-Ready Work ................................................................................. 9 
6.8 Permit as Authorization to Attach....................................................................................10 
6.9 Risers, Service Drops, J-Hooks, Vertical Grounds ..........................................................10 
ARTICLE 7:  MAKE-READY WORK AND INSTALLATION ...............................................10 
7.1 Estimate for Make-Ready Work ......................................................................................10 
7.2 Payment of Make-Ready Work .......................................................................................10 
7.3 Who May Perform Make-Ready Work ............................................................................10 
7.4 Scheduling of Make-Ready Work ...................................................................................10 
7.5 Licensee’s Installation, Removal, and Maintenance Work .............................................10 
ARTICLE 8:  POLE-TO-POLE TRANSFERS ...........................................................................11 
8.1 Required Transfers of Licensee’s Communications Facilities ........................................11 
ARTICLE 9:  REMOVAL OF POLES AND OVERHEAD TO UNDERGROUND 


           CONVERSIONS...................................................................................................11 
9.1 Removal of Poles .............................................................................................................11 
9.2 Required Removal of Poles .............................................................................................11 
9.3 Overhead to Underground Conversions...........................................................................12 
ARTICLE 10:  POLE REPLACEMENTS, MODIFICATIONS, AND ALLOICATION OF 


             COSTS ................................................................................................................12 
10.1 Licensee’s Action Requiring Replacement of Modifications ..........................................12 
10.2 Allocation of Costs ..........................................................................................................12 
10.3 Treatment of Multiple Requests for Same Pole ...............................................................13 
10.4 Strengthening/Guying ......................................................................................................14 
10.5 Utility Not Required to Relocate .....................................................................................14 
ARTICLE 11:  TERMINATION OF PERMIT ...........................................................................14 
11.1 Automatic Termination of Permit ....................................................................................14 
11.2 Surrender of Permit ..........................................................................................................14 
ARTICLE 12:  INSPECTIONS OF LICENSEE’S FACILITIES ...............................................14 
12.1 Utility’s Right to Inspect Attachments ............................................................................14 
12.2 Inspection Fees.................................................................................................................14 
12.3 Duty of Full Compliance .................................................................................................14 
12.4 No Liability ......................................................................................................................15 
ARTICLE 13:  UNAUTHORIZED OCCUPANCY OR ACCESS .............................................15 
13.1 Unauthorized Attachment Charge....................................................................................15 
13.2 No Ratification of Unauthorized Attachments ................................................................15 







iv 


ARTICLE 14:  LIABILITY AND DAMAGES ..........................................................................15 
14.1 Liability ............................................................................................................................15 
14.2 Indemnification ................................................................................................................16 
14.3 Environmental Hazards ....................................................................................................16 
14.4 Procedures for Indemnification ........................................................................................16 
14.5 Municipal Liability Limits ...............................................................................................17 
ARTICLE 15:  DUTIES, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND EXCULPATION .................................17 
15.1 Duty to Inspection ............................................................................................................17 
15.2 Knowledge of Work Conditions ......................................................................................17 
15.3 DISCLAIMER .................................................................................................................18 
15.4 Missing Labels .................................................................................................................18 
15.5 Duty to Supervise .............................................................................................................18 
15.6 Requests to De-Energize ..................................................................................................18 
15.7 Interruption of Service .....................................................................................................18 
15.8 Duty to Inform .................................................................................................................18 
ARTICLE 16:  INSURANCE ......................................................................................................19 
16.1 Policies Required .............................................................................................................19 
16.2 Qualification; Priority; Contractors’ Coverage ................................................................19 
16.3 Certificate of Insurance:  Other Requirements ................................................................20 
16.4 Limits ...............................................................................................................................20 
16.5 Prohibited Exclusions ......................................................................................................20 
16.6 Deductible/Self-Insurance Retention Amounts ...............................................................20 
16.7 Self-Insurance ..................................................................................................................20 
ARTICLE 17:  AUTHORIZATION NOT EXCLUSIVE ...........................................................21 
17.1 No Exclusivity .................................................................................................................21 
ARTICLE 18:  ASSIGNMENT ...................................................................................................21 
18.1 Limitations on Assignment ..............................................................................................21 
18.2 Obligations of Assignee/Transferee and Licensee ...........................................................21 
18.3 Sub-licensing....................................................................................................................21 
ARTICLE 19:  FAILURE TO ENFORCE ..................................................................................21 
19.1 Failure to Enforce ............................................................................................................21 
ARTICLE 20:  DEFAULT ..........................................................................................................22 
20.1 Utility’s Right to Terminate .............................................................................................22 
20.2 Opportunity to Cure/Termination ....................................................................................22 







v 


ARTICLE 21:  TERM OF AGREEMENT ..................................................................................22 
21.1 Term/Termination ............................................................................................................22 
21.2 Removal ...........................................................................................................................23 
21.3 Survival of Obligations ....................................................................................................23 
ARTICLE 22:  PERFORMANCE BOND ...................................................................................23 
22.1 Bond Requirements ..........................................................................................................23 
ARTICLE 23:  MISCELLANEOUS ...........................................................................................23 
23.1 Amending Agreement ......................................................................................................23 
23.2 Notices .............................................................................................................................23 
23.3 Entire Agreement .............................................................................................................24 
23.4 Severability ......................................................................................................................24 
23.5 Governing Law ................................................................................................................24 
23.6 Incorporation of Recitals and Appendices .......................................................................24 


APPENDIX A:   POLE ATTACHMENT FEES AND CHARGES 
APPENDIX B:   SPECIFICATIONS FOR ATTACHMENTS TO UTILITY’S POLES 
APPENDIX C:   PERMIT APPLICATION PROCESS 
APPENDIX D:   PERMIT APPLICATION FOR ATTACHMENT OR REMOVAL 
APPENDIX E:   DISTRIBUTION LINE MINIMUM DESIGN REVIEW INFORMATION 


AND WORKSHEET 
APPENDIX F:   FIELD DATA SUMMARY SHEET INSTRUCTIONS 







1 


LICENSING AGREEMENT 
FOR COMMUNICATIONS ATTACHMENTS TO UTILITY POLES 


BETWEEN CITY OF STOUGHTON AND MCIMETRO ACCESS TRANSMISSION 
SERVICES CORP. 


This Licensing Agreement (the "Agreement") dated this 1st day of April, 2019 ("Effective 
Date"), is made by and between the City of Stoughton, a municipal corporation of the State of 
Wisconsin, acting by and through the Utilities Committee of the Stoughton Municipal Electric 
Utility ("Utility"), and MCImetro Access Transmission Services Corp. ("Licensee"), each a 
“Party” and collectively the “Parties.” 


RECITALS 


A. Licensee proposes to install existing, cables, wires, and associated equipment on Utility's
Poles to provide Communications Services to the public.


B. Utility is willing, when it may lawfully do so, to issue one or more Permits authorizing
the placement or installation of Licensee's Attachments on Utility's Poles, provided that
Utility may refuse, on a non-discriminatory basis, to issue a Permit where there is
insufficient capacity or for reasons of safety, reliability, and generally applicable
engineering purposes.


AGREEMENT 


ARTICLE 1: DEFINITIONS 


For the purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 


1.1 Affiliate:  when used in relation to Licensee, means another entity that owns or controls, 
is owned or controlled by, or is under common ownership control with Licensee.  


1.2 Attaching Entity:  means any public or private entity that attaches to a Utility Pole 
pursuant to a license agreement with Utility to provide Communications Service. 


1.3 Attachment:  means Licensee’s Communications Facilities that are placed directly on 
Utility’s Poles or Overlashed onto an existing Attachment but does not include a Riser or 
a service drop that is attached to a single Pole on which Licensee has an existing 
Attachment. 


1.4 Attachment Fee:  means the annual per-Pole fee Licensee pays to Utility as set out in 
Appendix A. 


1.5 Climbing Space:  means that portion of a Pole that is free from encumbrances to enable 
Utility employees and contractors to safely climb, access, and work on Utility Facilities. 


1.6 Communications Facilities:  means a wire, cable, or appurtenant equipment used to 
provide Communications Service but does not include Wireless Facilities. 







2 


1.7 Communications Service:  means the transmission or receipt of voice, video, data, 
broadband Internet, or other forms of digital or analog signals over Communications 
Facilities. 


1.8 Engineering Standards:  means the engineering and safety standards contained in 
Appendix B and all applicable engineering and safety standards governing the 
installation, maintenance and operation of utility facilities and the performance of all 
work in or around electric utility facilities, and includes the most current versions of the 
National Electric Safety Code ("NESC"), the National Electrical Code ("NEC"), the 
Wisconsin State Electric Code ("WSEC"), the regulations of the Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration, the regulations of the Department of Workforce Development, the 
Department of Safety and Professional Services, and the safety and engineering 
requirements of any state or federal agency with jurisdiction over utility facilities, each of 
which is incorporated by reference into this Agreement. 


1.9 Make-Ready Work:  means all work, as reasonably determined by Utility, required to 
accommodate Licensee's Communications Facilities and/or to comply with all 
Engineering Standards. Such work may include, but is not limited to, rearrangement 
and/or transfer of Utility Facilities or existing Attachments, inspections, engineering 
work, permitting work, tree trimming (other than tree trimming performed for normal 
maintenance purposes), pole strengthening and construction. 


1.10 Occupancy:  means the use or specific reservation of space for Attachments on a Utility 
Pole. 


1.11 Overlash:  means to place an additional wire or cable facility onto existing attached 
Communications Facilities. 


1.12 Permit:  means written or electronic authorization by Utility for Licensee to make 
Attachments to specific Poles pursuant to the requirements of this Agreement. 


1.13 Permit Application:  means the application Licensee submits to Utility in order to obtain 
authorization to place Communications Facilities on Utility Facilities.  See Appendix D 
for the application form. 


1.14 Pole:  means a pole owned by Utility and used for the distribution of electricity or 
provision of Communications Service that is capable of supporting Attachments for 
Communications Services. 


1.15 Post-Construction Inspection:  means all work or operations performed to measure 
and/or observe Licensee’s Attachments shortly after installation to determine that the 
Attachments have been constructed in accordance with all applicable Engineering 
Standards and this Agreement. 


1.16 Pre-Construction Survey:  means all work or operations required by Engineering 
Standards or Utility to determine the Make-Ready Work necessary to accommodate 
Licensee's Communications Facilities on a Pole.  Such work may include, but is not 
limited to, field inspection, loading calculations, and administrative processing by Utility. 







3 


1.17 Riser:  means metallic or plastic encasement materials placed vertically on the Pole to 
guide and protect wires and cables. 


1.18 Tag:  means to place distinct markers on wires and cables, coded by color or other means 
specified by Utility that will readily identify the type of Attachment and its owner. 


1.19 Utility Facilities:  means all personal property and real property owned or controlled by 
Utility, including Poles and related facilities. 


1.20 Wireless Facilities:  means equipment at a fixed location that enables Wireless Service 
between user equipment and a wireless network.  The term Wireless Facilities does not 
include a wireline backhaul or fronthaul facility. 


1.21 Wireless Service:  means any service using licensed or unlicensed wireless spectrum, 
including the use of a Wi-Fi network, whether at a fixed location or by means of a mobile 
device, that is provided using Wireless Facilities. 


ARTICLE 2: SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 


2.1 Grant of License.  Subject to the provisions of this Agreement and to Licensee's 
application for and receipt of a Permit, Utility hereby grants Licensee a revocable, 
nonexclusive license authorizing Licensee to install and maintain fiber optic cable to 
Utility's Poles for the purpose of offering wireline backhaul service. 


2.2 Permitted Use.  Throughout the term of this Agreement, Licensee shall continuously use 
Utility’s Poles for the provision of wireline backhaul and/or fronthaul service (the 
“Permitted Use”).  No other use by Licensee (including the provision of Wireless 
Services) shall be allowed without Utility’s express written consent to such use and 
without the Parties entering into a separate wireless attachment agreement.   


2.3 Parties Bound by Agreement.  Licensee and Utility agree to be bound by all provisions of 
this Agreement and of the Permits issued pursuant to this Agreement. 


2.4 Permit Issuance Conditions.  Utility will issue a Permit to Licensee only when Utility 
determines, in its sole judgment, reasonably exercised, that (i) it has sufficient capacity to 
accommodate the Attachments, (ii) Licensee meets all requirements set forth in this 
Agreement, and (iii) the affected Poles can safely accommodate the proposed 
Attachments consistent with all Engineering Standards. 


2.5 Reserve Capacity.  Access to space on Poles will be made available to Licensee with the 
understanding that such access is to Utility's reserve capacity. On giving Licensee at least 
ninety (90) days' prior notice, Utility may reclaim such reserve capacity if required for 
Utility's future electric service use, including the attachment of communications lines for 
internal Utility operational requirements. Utility will inform Licensee of any plans Utility 
may have to use such reserve capacity at the time Licensee submits its Permit 
Application, but this requirement shall not be a prerequisite to Utility's exercise of its 
right to reclaim capacity. On giving Licensee notice that it will reclaim reserve capacity, 
Utility shall give Licensee the option to remove its Communications Facilities from the 







4 


affected Pole(s) or to pay for the cost of any Make-Ready Work needed to expand 
capacity so that Licensee can maintain its Communications Facilities on the affected 
Pole(s).  The allocation of the cost of any such Make-Ready Work (including the transfer, 
rearrangement, or relocation of third-party Attachments) shall be determined in 
accordance with Article 10 and shall be shared with any other licensee who also has 
Attachments on the affected Pole(s) and who is required to share in such costs pursuant to 
its pole attachment agreement with Utility. 


2.6 No Interest in Property.  No use, however lengthy, of any Utility Facilities, and no 
payment of any fees or charges required under this Agreement, shall create or vest in 
Licensee any easements or other ownership or property rights of any nature in any 
portion of such Utility Facilities. Neither this Agreement, nor any Permit granted under 
this Agreement, shall constitute an assignment of any of Utility's rights to any Utility 
Facilities. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Licensee shall, at 
all times, be and remain a mere licensee. 


2.7 Licensee's Right to Attach. 


2.7.1 Nothing in this Agreement, other than a Permit issued pursuant to Article 6, shall 
be construed as granting Licensee any right to attach Licensee's Communications 
Facilities to any specific Pole or to compel Utility to grant Licensee the right to 
attach to any specific Pole. 


2.7.2 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to grant any Affiliate of Licensee 
the right to attach to Utility Poles without the Affiliate entering into a license 
agreement with Utility and receiving a permit pursuant to such agreement. 


2.7.3 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to require Utility to allow Licensee 
to use Utility's Poles after the termination of this Agreement. 


2.8 Necessity of Authorizations.  Licensee is obligated to obtain all necessary certifications, 
permits, and franchises from federal, state, and local authorities prior to making any 
Attachments. 


2.9 Utility's Rights over Poles.  The Parties agree that this Agreement does not in any way 
limit Utility's right to locate, operate, maintain, or remove its Poles in the manner that it 
reasonably believes will best enable it to fulfill its own service requirements. 


2.10 Expansion of Capacity.  Utility will take reasonable steps to expand Pole capacity when 
necessary to accommodate Licensee's request for attachment. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing sentence, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to require Utility to 
install, retain, extend, or maintain any Pole for use by Licensee when such Pole is not 
needed for Utility's own service requirements. 


2.11 Other Agreements.  Except as provided herein, nothing in this Agreement shall restrict or 
prohibit Utility from fulfilling any agreement or arrangement regarding Poles into which 
Utility has previously entered, or may enter in the future, with others not party to this 
Agreement. 







5 


2.12 Overlashing.  The following provisions will apply to Overlashing: 


2.12.1 Licensee shall obtain a Permit for each Overlashing, in accordance with the 
requirements of Article 6.  Absent such authorization, Overlashing constitutes an 
unauthorized Attachment and is subject to removal or, at Utility’s discretion, 
imposition of an Unauthorized Attachment Fee, as specified in Appendix A.  


2.12.2 If Licensee demonstrates that the Overlashing of Licensee's Attachments is 
required to accommodate Licensee’s Communications Facilities, and such 
Overlashing does not exceed a combined cross-sectional area of three-square 
inches (two-inch diameter), Utility shall issue the requested Permit, provided that 
the Overlashing can be done consistent with Section 2.4.  Authorized Overlashing 
to accommodate Licensee’s Communications Facilities shall not increase the 
Annual Attachment Fee Licensee pays pursuant to Appendix A.  Licensee shall, 
however, be responsible for all Make-Ready Work and other charges associated 
with the Overlashing. 


2.12.3 At Licensee’s request, Utility may allow Overlashing to accommodate facilities of 
a third party.  In such circumstances, the third party must enter into a License 
agreement with Utility, obtain the appropriate permits, and pay a separate 
attachment fee as well as the costs of all necessary Make-Ready Work required to 
accommodate the Overlashing.  Utility shall not grant such permits to third parties 
allowing Overlashing of Licensee’s Communications Facilities without 
Licensee’s consent. 


2.12.4 Make-Ready Work procedures set forth in Article 7 shall apply, as necessary, to 
all Overlashing. 


ARTICLE 3:  FEES AND CHARGES 


3.1 Fee Schedule.  Licensee shall pay to Utility the fees and charges specified in Appendix A 
and shall comply with the terms and conditions regarding payments as specified in this 
Agreement. 


3.2 Annual Attachment Fee. 


3.2.1 Licensee shall pay to Utility an Attachment Fee on a per-Pole basis at the rate 
specified in Appendix A. Utility shall invoice Licensee for such Attachment Fee 
semi-annually on a forward-looking basis, billing Licensee for half the annual 
Attachment Fee in January for the first half of the year (i.e., January through 
June) and in July for the second half of the year (i.e., July through December). 


3.2.2 The Attachment Fee shall commence as of the beginning of the billing cycle 
during which the Permit for such Attachment was issued. 


3.3 Payment.  Licensee shall pay invoices for any fee or charge as specified in Appendix A 
or elsewhere in this Agreement within thirty (30) days after Licensee's receipt thereof. 







6 


3.4 Late Charge.  If Licensee fails to pay any amount owed under this Agreement within 
thirty (30) days after it becomes due, Licensee, upon receipt of ten (10) days' written 
notice, shall pay interest to Utility, at the rate of two percent (2%) per month, on the 
amount due, unless otherwise prohibited by state law. 


3.5 Change in Fees/Charges.  Any change in fees or charges shall be as set forth in Appendix 
A. 


3.6 Payment of Make-Ready Work.  Licensee will be responsible for payment to Utility of all 
Make-Ready Work required to accommodate Licensee's Communications Facilities 
(including Overlashes). 


3.7 Advance Payment. 


3.7.1 At the discretion of Utility, Licensee shall pay in advance all reasonable costs, 
including but not limited to, administrative, construction, inspections, and Make-
Ready Work expenses, in connection with the initial installation or rearrangement 
of Licensee's Communications Facilities pursuant to the procedures set forth in 
Articles 6 and 7. 


3.7.2 Whenever Utility at its discretion requires advance payment of estimated 
expenses prior to the undertaking of an activity under this Agreement and the 
actual cost of such activity exceeds the estimated cost, Licensee agrees to pay 
Utility for the difference in cost. To the extent that the actual cost of the activity is 
less than the estimated cost, Utility agrees to refund to Licensee the difference in 
cost. 


3.8 Determination of Charges.  Wherever this Agreement requires Licensee to pay for work 
done or contracted by Utility, the charge for such work shall include all reasonable 
material, labor, engineering, and administrative costs and applicable overheads. Utility 
shall bill its services based on actual costs, and such costs will be determined in 
accordance with Utility's cost accounting system used for recording capital and expense 
activities. 


3.9 Work Performed by Utility.  Whenever this Agreement requires Utility to perform any 
work, Licensee acknowledges and agrees that Utility may at its sole discretion utilize its 
own employees or contractors, or any combination of the two, to perform such work. 


ARTICLE 4:  SPECIFICATIONS 


4.1 Installation and Maintenance of Communications Facilities.  Licensee shall be 
responsible for the installation, maintenance, and repair of its Communications Facilities, 
which shall be installed and maintained in accordance with all applicable Engineering 
Standards.  Utility reserves the right to have its inspector on-site at the time Attachments 
are made, at no additional cost to Licensee. 


4.2 Tagging.  Licensee shall Tag all of its Communications Facilities as specified in 
Appendix B upon installation.  If, after written notice and a 30-day opportunity to cure, 







7 


Licensee fails to Tag its Communications Facilities in accordance with this Section 4.2, 
such failure will be considered a violation of the Engineering Standards. 


4.3 Interference.  Licensee shall not allow its Communications Facilities to impair the ability 
of Utility or any third party to use Utility's Poles, nor shall Licensee allow its 
Communications Facilities to interfere with the use or operation of any Utility Facilities 
or the Attachments of any authorized user of Utility's Poles. 


4.4 Protective Equipment.  Licensee, its employees and contractors, shall use and install 
adequate protective equipment to ensure the safety of people and facilities. Licensee 
shall, at its own expense, install protective devices designed to handle the voltage and 
current impressed on its Communications Facilities in the event of a contact with the 
supply conductor.  Except as provided in Section 14.1, Utility shall not be liable for any 
actual or consequential damages related to Licensee's Communications Facilities or 
Licensee's customers' facilities. 


4.5 Violation of Specifications.  If Licensee's Communications Facilities, or any part thereof, 
are installed, used, or maintained in violation of this Agreement and if Licensee has not 
corrected the violation(s) within thirty (30) calendar days after receiving a written notice 
of the violation(s) from Utility, Utility may at its own option correct such conditions. 
Utility will attempt to notify Licensee in writing prior to performing such work whenever 
practicable.  When Utility reasonably believes, however, that any such violation poses an 
immediate threat to the safety of any person, interferes with the performance of Utility's 
service obligations, or poses an immediate threat to the physical integrity of Utility 
Facilities, Utility may perform such work and/or take such action as it deems necessary 
without first giving written notice to Licensee. As soon as practicable thereafter, Utility 
will advise Licensee of the work performed or the action taken. Licensee shall be 
responsible for paying Utility for all reasonable costs Utility incurs taking action under 
this subsection 


4.6 Effect of Failure to Exercise Access Rights.  If Licensee does not exercise the right 
granted pursuant to a Permit by commencing construction of its Attachments within 
ninety (90) days of the effective date of the Permit or any extension thereof, Licensee 
shall lose the right to use the affected Pole space and the Permit shall terminate.  Utility 
shall grant an extension where Licensee demonstrates that events beyond its control 
prevented Licensee from exercising any such access right. In such instances, Utility shall 
endeavor to make other space available to Licensee, upon written request, as soon as 
reasonably possible 


4.7 Removal of Nonfunctional Attachments.  At its sole expense, Licensee shall remove any 
of its Attachments or any part thereof that becomes nonfunctional and no longer fit for 
service ("Nonfunctional Attachment") as provided in this Section 4.7.  Except as 
otherwise provided, Licensee shall remove Nonfunctional Attachments within one (1) 
year of the Attachment becoming nonfunctional, unless Licensee receives written notice 
from Utility that removal is necessary to accommodate Utility's or another Attaching 
Entity's use of the affected Pole(s), in which case Licensee shall remove such 
Nonfunctional Attachment within sixty (60) days of receiving the notice. Where Licensee 
has received a Permit to Overlash a Nonfunctional Attachment, such Nonfunctional 


.


.







8 


Attachment may remain in place until Utility notifies Licensee that removal is necessary 
to accommodate Utility's or another Attaching Entity's use of the affected Pole(s). 


 
ARTICLE 5:  PRIVATE AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE 
 
5.1 Necessary Authorizations.  Licensee shall be responsible for obtaining from the 


appropriate public and/or private authority or other appropriate persons any required 
authorization to construct, operate, and/or maintain its Communications Facilities on 
public and/or private property before it occupies any portion of Utility's Poles. Utility 
retains the right to require evidence that appropriate authorization has been obtained 
before any Permit is issued to Licensee. Licensee's obligations under this Article 5 
include, but are not limited to, its obligation to obtain all necessary approvals to occupy 
public/private rights-of-way and to pay all costs associated therewith. Licensee shall 
defend, indemnify, and reimburse Utility for all loss and expense, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees, that Utility may incur as a result of claims by governmental bodies, 
owners of private property, or other persons, that assert that Licensee does not have 
sufficient rights or authority to attach Licensee's Communications Facilities to Utility's 
Poles. 


 
5.2 Lawful Purpose and Use.  Licensee's Communications Facilities must comply with all 


applicable local, state, and federal laws. 


5.3 Utility’s Rights.  Utility may deny Licensee's request for a Permit to attach to a Pole if 
granting the request would result in a forfeiture of Utility's right to maintain its Pole in its 
current location.  Utility may also revoke a Permit if the presence of Licensee's 
Communications Facilities on a Pole would cause a forfeiture. In that event, Licensee 
shall promptly remove its Communications Facilities upon receipt of written notice from 
Utility.  Such notice shall provide an explanation as to the Utility's potential forfeiture of 
its right to maintain the Pole at issue.  If Licensee fails to remove its Communications 
Facilities within thirty (30) calendar days after Licensee's receipt of the written notice or 
such other longer time period as the Parties may agree, Utility may remove Licensee’s 
Communications Facilities using its own personnel or a contractor and charge Licensee 
125% of the actual cost incurred by Utility.  If Utility does not remove the 
Communications Facilities, the affected Attachments shall be subject to the Failure to 
Remove Facilities Charge set out in Appendix A until the affected Attachments are 
actually removed. 


5.4 Effect of Consent to Construction/Maintenance.  Utility’s Consent to the construction or 
maintenance of any of Licensee’s Attachments shall not be deemed to be an 
acknowledgment that Licensee has the necessary authority to construct or maintain any 
such Attachments. It is Licensee's responsibility to obtain all necessary approvals from all 
appropriate parties or agencies. 


 
ARTICLE 6:  PERMITTING AND NOTIFICATION PROCEDURES 
 
6.1 Permit Required.  Licensee shall not install any Attachments on any Pole without first 


applying for and obtaining a Permit, pursuant to the applicable requirements of 







9 


Appendix B and Appendix D.  Attachments to or rights to occupy other Utility Facilities 
not covered by this Agreement must be separately negotiated. 


6.2 Service Drops.  Licensee shall notify Utility within thirty (30) days of the attachment of a 
service drop where an existing permitted Attachment exists.  In the event that a service 
drop constitutes the initial Attachment to a given Pole, Licensee will be required to 
follow the permitting process set forth in Section 6.1.  In this case, Licensee will be 
allowed thirty (30) days after the Attachment is made to complete the permitting process. 


6.3 Permits for Modifications or Overlashing.  Permits are required for any modifications to 
permitted attachments allowed under this Agreement, including Overlashing, as set out in 
Section 2.12.  Licensee, Licensee’s Affiliate, or other third party, as applicable, shall pay 
any necessary Make-Ready Work costs to accommodate such modifications or 
Overlashing. 


6.4 Pre-Construction Survey. As part of the Permit Application process, Licensee must 
conduct and, where required by Utility, submit a Pre-Construction Survey. Licensee must 
also certify that Licensee's Communications Facilities can be installed on the identified 
Poles in compliance with all Engineering Standards. Such certification must be made by 
one of the following:  


6.4.1 A professional engineer with experience with electric utility facilities; 


6.4.2 The head of Licensee's engineering department; or 


6.4.3 A person who has been preapproved by Utility to provide such certification on 
Licensee’s behalf. 


Utility shall waive the requirements of this Section 6.4 with respect to those service drops 
that do not come within the definition of Attachment. 


6.5 Utility Review of Permit Application.  Utility shall use commercially reasonable efforts 
to act on a Permit request within forty-five (45) days of the receipt of a completed Permit 
Application. Upon receipt of a complete and properly executed Permit Application (see 
Appendix C, “Pole Attachment Permit Application Process”), Utility will review the 
Permit Application as promptly as possible and discuss any issues with Licensee, 
including unusual engineering or Make-Ready Work requirements associated with the 
Permit Application. Utility’s acceptance of the submitted design documents does not 
relieve Licensee of full responsibility for any errors and/or omissions in the engineering 
analysis. 


6.6 Expedited Process.  Utility shall cooperate with Licensee to expedite the permitting 
process where the proposed Attachment is necessary to restore service or prevent an 
imminent service outage on Licensee's system. 


6.7 Performance of Make-Ready Work.  If Make-Ready Work is required to accommodate 
Licensee's Attachments, such work shall be performed in accordance with Article 7. 







10 


6.8 Permit as Authorization to Attach.  After receipt of payment for any necessary Make-
Ready Work, Utility will sign and return the Permit Application, which shall serve as 
authorization for Licensee to make its Attachment(s). 


6.9 Risers, Service Drops, J-Hooks, Vertical Grounds.  No Permit is required for Risers, J-
hooks, vertical grounds, or those service drops that are not considered Attachments.  All 
Risers shall be installed in compliance with the specifications set out in Appendix B. 


 
ARTICLE 7:  MAKE-READY WORK AND INSTALLATION 
 
7.1 Estimate for Make-Ready Work.  In the event Utility determines after review of the 


Permit Application that it can accommodate Licensee's request for Attachment(s), 
including Overlashing of an existing Attachment, Utility will advise Licensee of any 
estimated Make-Ready Work charges necessary to accommodate the Attachment. 


 
7.2 Payment of Make-Ready Work.  Upon completion of the Make-Ready Work, Licensee 


shall pay Utility's actual cost of such Make-Ready Work. Utility, at its discretion, may 
require payment in advance based upon the estimated cost of the Make-Ready Work. 


7.3 Who May Perform Make-Ready Work.  Make-Ready Work shall be performed only by 
Utility or a contractor authorized by Utility to perform such work.  If Utility cannot 
perform the Make-Ready Work to accommodate Licensee's Communications Facilities 
within ninety (90) days of Licensee's request for attachment, Licensee may, with Utility's 
written consent, employ a contractor approved by Utility to perform such work. 


7.4 Scheduling of Make-Ready Work.  In the event Licensee requests that the Make-Ready 
Work be performed on a priority basis or outside of Utility's normal work hours, Licensee 
agrees to pay any resulting increased costs. Nothing in this Agreement is intended, 
however, to require Utility to perform work for Licensee before the Utility’s other 
scheduled work. 


7.5 Licensee's Installation, Removal, and Maintenance Work. 
 


7.5.1 All of Licensee's installation, removal, and maintenance work shall be performed 
at Licensee's sole cost and expense, in a good and workmanlike manner, and must 
not adversely or materially affect the structural integrity of Utility's Poles or 
Utility Facilities or any other facilities or equipment attached thereto. 


 
7.5.2 All of Licensee's installation, removal, and maintenance work performed on 


Utility's Poles or in the vicinity of other Utility Facilities, by either Licensee's 
own employees or contractors, shall be in compliance with all applicable 
Engineering Standards. Licensee shall assure that any person installing, 
maintaining, or removing Licensee's Communications Facilities be duly qualified 
and familiar with all Engineering Standards, the provisions of Article 15 (Duties, 
Responsibilities, and Exculpation) and Article 16 (Insurance Requirements), and 
the Minimum Design Specifications contained in Appendix B. 


 







11 


ARTICLE 8:  POLE-TO-POLE TRANSFERS 


8.1 Required Transfers of Licensee's Communications Facilities.  In the event Utility desires 
to replace a Pole on which Licensee maintains Communications Facilities, Licensee must 
transfer its Communications Facilities at its own expense within thirty (30) days of 
receiving written notice from Utility that a replacement Pole is available to receive 
Licensee’s Communications Facilities.  If Licensee fails to transfer its Communications 
Facilities within that 30-day period or any extension thereof granted by Utility, Utility 
may transfer Licensee's Communications Facilities using its own personnel or a 
contractor and charge Licensee 125% of the actual cost incurred by Utility.  Utility shall 
not be liable for damage to Licensee's Communications Facilities except to the extent 
provided in Section 14.1. If Licensee fails to transfer its Communications Facilities 
within the required time period and Utility declines to transfer the Communications 
Facilities, Licensee shall be subject to the Failure to Transfer Facilities Charge set out in 
Appendix A until the transfer actually occurs. 


ARTICLE 9:  REMOVAL OF POLES AND OVERHEAD TO UNDERGROUND 
CONVERSIONS 


9.1 Removal of Poles.  If Utility desires at any time to take out of service any Poles on which 
Licensee has Attachments, Utility shall give Licensee notice in writing to that effect at least 
sixty (60) days prior to the date on which it intends to remove such Poles.  If, following the 
expiration of this time period or any extension thereof granted by Utility, Licensee has not 
yet removed and/or transferred all of its Communications Facilities from the Pole, Utility 
may remove or transfer such Communications Facilities using its own personnel or a 
contractor and charge Licensee 125% of the actual cost incurred by Utility.  If Licensee 
fails to timely remove the Attachments and Utility declines to perform the work, the 
affected Attachments shall be subject to the Failure to Timely Transfer or Remove 
Facilities Charges set out in Appendix A until the affected Attachments are actually 
removed or transferred.  Utility shall give Licensee prior written notice of any such removal 
or transfer of Licensee’s Communications Facilities. 


9.2 Required Removal of Poles.  Upon receipt of not less than thirty (30) days prior written 
notice from Utility to Licensee that any Pole must be removed by reason of any federal, 
state, county, municipal or other governmental requirement, or the requirement of a 
property owner, the license covering the use of such Pole shall terminate and Licensee's 
Communications Facilities shall be removed promptly from the Pole(s).  If Licensee fails 
to remove its Communications Facilities from such Pole(s) within the prescribed time 
period, Utility may remove Licensee’s Facilities, using its own personnel or a contractor 
at the same time Utility removes the affected Pole(s), and Utility may charge Licensee 
125% of the actual costs incurred by Utility.  If Licensee fails to timely remove its facilities 
and Utility declines to perform the work, the affected Attachments shall be subject to the 
Failure to Timely Transfer or Remove Facilities Charge set out in Appendix A until the 
affected Attachments are actually removed. 







12 


9.3 Overhead to Underground Conversions.  When Utility is planning to decommission and 
remove any Pole on which Licensee maintains Communications Facilities because Utility 
intends to convert an overhead electric distribution line to underground, Utility shall give 
written notice to Licensee of the planned conversion.  In such instances, Licensee shall 
remove its Communications Facilities from the affected Poles at its own expense within 
sixty (60) days after receiving notice from Utility.  If Licensee fails to remove its 
Communications Facilities within this time period or any extension thereof granted by 
Utility, Utility may remove Licensee’s Communications Facilities from such Poles using 
its own personnel or a contractor and charge Licensee 125% of the actual cost incurred by 
Utility.  Utility shall give Licensee prior written notice of any such removal of Licensee’s 
Communications Facilities. Utility shall not be liable for damage to Licensee's 
Communications Facilities, except to the extent provided in Section 14.1.  If neither 
Licensee nor Utility performs the removal, the affected Communications Facilities shall be 
subject to the Failure to Remove Facilities Charge set out in Appendix A until the affected 
Communications Facilities are actually removed.  Utility shall give Licensee the option to 
relocate its Communications Facilities underground in the same manner as Utility Facilities 
are relocated (i.e., installation via open trench or directional boring) provided that Licensee 
provides all necessary equipment and materials for such work to Utility’s contractor so that 
the contractor may install each Party’s respective facilities at the same time.  Utility will 
invoice Licensee for its share of the contractor’s costs in performing the work. 
 


ARTICLE 10:  POLE REPLACEMENTS, MODIFICATIONS, AND ALLOCATION OF 
COSTS 


 
10.1 Licensee's Action Requiring Replacement or Modification.  In the event that any Pole to 


which Licensee desires to make an Attachment is unable to support or accommodate the 
additional facilities in accordance with all applicable Engineering Standards, Utility will 
notify Licensee of the changes necessary to provide an adequate Pole, including but not 
limited to replacement or extension of the Pole and rearrangement or transfer of Utility's 
Facilities.  As provided in Section 7.1, Utility shall provide Licensee with an estimate of 
the costs for the replacement or modification of the Pole, including the costs associated 
with transferring Utility's Facilities (i.e., Make-Ready Work costs).  If Licensee elects to 
go forward with the necessary changes, Licensee shall pay to Utility the actual cost of 
making the required changes in accordance with Article 7.  Utility may, in its discretion, 
require advance payment. 


 
10.2 Allocation of Costs.  The costs for any rearrangement or transfer of Licensee's 


Communications Facilities or the modification or replacement of a Pole (including any 
related costs for tree cutting or trimming required to clear the new location of Utility's 
cables or wires) shall be allocated to Utility or Licensee or other Attaching Entity on the 
following basis: 


10.2.1 If Utility intends to modify or replace a Pole solely for its own requirements, 
Utility shall be responsible for the costs related to the modification or replacement 
of the Pole, and Licensee shall be responsible for the costs associated with the 
rearrangement or transfer of its own Communications Facilities.  Prior to making 
any such modification or replacement, Utility shall provide Licensee prior written 







13 


notice in order to allow Licensee a reasonable opportunity to elect to modify or 
add to its existing Communications Facilities.  If Licensee elects to add to or 
modify its Communications Facilities within one (1) year after receiving such 
notice, Licensee shall bear a pro-rata share of the costs incurred by Utility in 
making the space on the Poles accessible to Licensee.  The notification 
requirement of this Section 10.2.1 shall not apply to routine maintenance or 
emergency situations.  


10.2.2 If the modification or replacement of a Pole is necessitated by Licensee’s 
requirements, Licensee shall be responsible for the costs related to the 
modification or replacement of the Pole and for the costs associated with the 
transfer or rearrangement of any other Attaching Entity's Attachments.  Utility 
shall not be obligated in any way to enforce or administer Licensee's 
responsibility for the costs associated with the transfer or rearrangement of 
another Attaching Entity's Attachments pursuant to this provision. 


10.2.3 If the modification or the replacement of a Pole is the result of an additional 
Attachment or the modification of an existing Attachment sought by an Attaching 
Entity other than Utility or Licensee, the Attaching Entity requesting the 
additional or modified Attachment shall bear the entire cost of the modification or 
Pole replacement and such Attaching Entity shall be responsible for the costs 
associated with transferring or rearranging Licensee's Communications Facilities 
except as otherwise provided in this Agreement.  Upon written notice from Utility 
or the Attaching Entity, provided such Attaching Entity agrees in writing to pay 
Licensee's costs, Licensee shall promptly perform any transfer or rearrangement 
of Licensee's Attachments necessary to accommodate the other Attaching Entity's 
Attachments to the Pole.  If Licensee fails to perform such transfer or 
rearrangement within forty (40) days from the date of written notice from Utility, 
or written notice and agreement to pay from the other Attaching Entity, Utility or 
the other Attaching Entity shall have the right, but not the obligation, to perform 
the transfer or rearrangement.  In the event Utility performs the transfer or 
rearrangement, Utility may charge Licensee, and Licensee shall be obligated to 
pay Utility for the cost of performing such work. Except as otherwise provided in 
this Agreement, Licensee shall not be required to make any transfer or 
rearrangement at the request of another Attaching Entity unless and until the other 
Attaching Entity has made arrangements in writing with Licensee to pay for the 
cost of the transfer or rearrangement. 


10.2.4 If a Pole must be modified or replaced for other reasons unrelated to the use of the 
Pole by Attaching Entities (e.g., storm, accident, deterioration), Utility shall pay 
the costs of such modification or replacement; provided however, that Licensee 
shall be responsible for the costs of rearranging or transferring Licensee's 
Communications Facilities.  


10.3 Treatment of Multiple Requests for Same Pole.  If Utility receives Permit Applications 
for the same Pole from two (2) or more prospective licensees within sixty (60) days of the 







14 


initial request, and accommodating their respective requests would require modification 
or replacement of the Pole, Utility will evenly allocate among such licensees the 
applicable costs associated with such modification or replacement. 


10.4 Strengthening/Guying.  Any strengthening of Poles through the use of guying to 
accommodate Licensee's Attachments shall be provided by Licensee at Licensee's 
expense and to the satisfaction of Utility as specified in Appendix B. 


10.5 Utility Not Required to Relocate.  No provision of this Agreement shall be construed to 
require Utility to relocate Utility Facilities on a Pole for Licensee’s benefit. 


ARTICLE 11: TERMINATION OF PERMIT 


11.1 Automatic Termination of Permit.  Any Permit issued pursuant to this Agreement shall 
automatically terminate when Licensee ceases to have authority to construct and operate 
its Communications Facilities on public or private property at the location of the 
particular Pole covered by the Permit or when Licensee surrenders a Permit pursuant to 
Section 11.2. 


11.2 Surrender of Permit.  Licensee may at any time surrender any Permit for any of its 
Attachments and may remove its Communications Facilities from the affected Pole(s), 
provided however that before commencing any such removal Licensee must obtain 
Utility's written approval of Licensee's plans for removal, including the name of the party 
performing such work and the date(s) and time(s) during which such work will be 
completed. All such work is subject to the insurance requirements of Article 16.  No 
refund of any fees or costs will be made upon removal. 


ARTICLE 12:  INSPECTIONS OF LICENSEE'S FACILITIES 


12.1 Utility's Right to Inspect Attachments.  Utility has the right at any time to inspect 
Licensee's Attachments.  The purpose of the inspection will be to determine whether 
Licensee's Attachments comply with all Engineering Standards.  Utility will give 
Licensee reasonable advance written notice of such inspections, except in those instances 
where safety considerations justify the need for such inspection without the delay of 
waiting until written notice has been received. Licensee may have its own personnel 
present during any such inspections. 


12.2 Inspection Fees.  Licensee shall reimburse Utility for the actual costs Utility incurs in 
inspecting any of Licensee's Attachments when the inspection reveals a failure to comply 
with all Engineering Standards. 


12.3 Duty of Full Compliance.  Licensee agrees to bring its Attachments into full compliance 
with all applicable Engineering Standards, at its sole expense, in the event that any 
inspection reveals that the affected Attachment does not fully comply with all applicable 
Engineering Standards.  Licensee shall bring such Attachment(s) into compliance with 
this Agreement within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice from Utility or within such 
other time period agreed to by the Parties. 







15 


12.4 No Liability.  Any inspections undertaken pursuant to this Article 12, or the failure to do 
so, shall not operate to impose upon Utility any liability of any kind whatsoever or relieve 
Licensee of any responsibility, obligations, or liability whether assumed under this 
Agreement or otherwise existing. 


ARTICLE 13:  UNAUTHORIZED OCCUPANCY OR ACCESS 


13.1 Unauthorized Attachment Charge.  If any of Licensee's Attachments are found occupying 
any Pole without a valid Permit, Utility, without prejudice to its other rights or remedies 
under this Agreement, may assess an Unauthorized Attachment Charge (as specified in 
Appendix A), which charge shall be paid based on one (1) year's presumed occupancy.  
In the event Licensee fails to pay such charge within thirty (30) days of receiving 
notification thereof, Utility may remove such Communications Facilities using its own 
personnel or a contractor and charge Licensee 125% of the actual costs incurred by 
Utility.  Upon payment of the Unauthorized Attachment Charge, Licensee may seek a 
Permit for any such unauthorized Attachment. 


13.2 No Ratification of Unauthorized Attachment.  No act or failure to act by Utility with 
regard to such unauthorized Attachment shall be deemed as ratification of the 
unauthorized Attachment, and if any Permit should be subsequently issued, such Permit 
shall not operate retroactively or constitute a waiver by Utility of any of its rights or 
privileges under this Agreement or otherwise; provided, however, that Licensee shall be 
subject to all liabilities, obligations, and responsibilities of this Agreement in regards to 
such unauthorized Attachment from its inception. 


ARTICLE 14: LIABILITY AND DAMAGES 


14.1 Liability.  Utility reserves to itself the right to maintain and operate its Poles in such 
manner as will best enable it to fulfill its own service requirements.  Each Party to this 
Agreement shall exercise reasonable precaution to avoid damaging the other Party's 
facilities and shall make an immediate report to the other of the occurrence of any such 
damage caused by the reporting Party's employees, agents, or contractors.  Subject to 
Section 14.5, Utility agrees to reimburse Licensee for all reasonable costs incurred by 
Licensee for the physical repair of Licensee's facilities damaged by the negligence of 
Utility, its employees, agents, or contractors. Licensee also agrees to reimburse Utility for 
all reasonable costs incurred by Utility for the physical repair of Utility Facilities 
damaged by the negligence of Licensee, its employees, agents, or contractors.  Neither 
Party, however, shall be liable to the other Party for any fines, penalties, claims, or 
damages stemming from the interruption of or interference with the other Party's service 
(including without limitation special, indirect, punitive, or consequential damages). 


14.1.1 Licensee further agrees, subject to Section 14.1.2:  (i) to reimburse any Attaching 
Entity that is not a party hereto for all reasonable costs incurred by that non-party 
Attaching Entity for the physical repair of that non-party Attaching Entity's 
facilities damaged by the negligence of Licensee, its employees, agents or 
contractors, and (ii) that Licensee shall not in any manner seek to hold a non-party 







16 


Attaching Entity liable for any fines, penalties, claims, or damages stemming 
from the interruption of or interference with Licensee's service (including special, 
indirect, punitive, or consequential damages).  Subject to Section 14.1.2, each 
such non-party Attaching Entity is explicitly made a third-party beneficiary of this 
Section 14.1.1. 


14.1.2 Section 14.1.1 shall be null and void and unenforceable by or with respect to any 
non-party Attaching Entity, except to the extent that such non-party Attaching 
Entity has entered into a license agreement with Utility that contains a provision 
identical to Section 14.1.1 that provides Licensee with the same benefits and 
rights as those conferred upon non-party Attaching Entities by Section 14.1.1, and 
that is fully and equally enforceable by or for the benefit of Licensee as Section 
14.1.1. 


14.2 Indemnification.  Licensee, and any agent, contractor or subcontractor of Licensee, shall 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless Utility and its officials, officers, board members, 
council members, commissioners, representatives, employees, agents, and contractors 
against any and all liability, costs, damages, fines, taxes, special charges by others, 
penalties, payments (including payments made by Utility under any Workers’ 
Compensation Laws or under any plan for employees’ disability and death benefits), and 
expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees of Utility and all other costs and expenses 
of litigation) for third-party claims (excluding those covered by Sections 14.1.1 and 
14.1.2 above) (“Covered Claims”) arising from, Licensee’s negligence or willful 
misconduct, in connection with the construction, maintenance, repair, presence, use, 
relocation, transfer, removal or operation by Licensee, or by Licensee’s officers, 
directors, employees, agents or contractors, of Licensee’s Communications Facilities, 
except to the extent of Utility’s negligence or willful misconduct giving rise to such 
Covered Claims. 


14.3 Environmental Hazards.  Licensee represents and warrants that its use of Utility's Poles 
will not generate any Hazardous Substances, that it will not store or dispose on or about 
Utility's Poles or transport to Utility's Poles any Hazardous Substances and that 
Licensee's Communications Facilities will not constitute or contain and will not generate 
any Hazardous Substances in violation of state or federal law now or hereafter in effect 
including any amendments.  "Hazardous  Substance" shall be interpreted broadly to 
mean any substance or material designated or defined as hazardous or toxic waste, 
hazardous or toxic material, hazardous or toxic or radioactive substance, or other similar 
term by any federal, state, or local laws, regulations or rules now or hereafter in effect 
including any amendments. Licensee further represents and warrants that in the event of 
breakage, leakage, incineration or other disaster, its Communications Facilities would not 
release such Hazardous Substances. 


14.4 Procedures for Indemnification. 


14.4.1 Utility shall promptly give Licensee notice of any claim or threatened claim, 
specifying the factual basis for such claim and the amount of the claim. If the 







17 


claim relates to an action, suit or proceeding filed by a third party against Utility, 
Utility shall endeavor to give notice to Licensee no later than ten (10) calendar 
days after Utility receives written notice of the action, suit or proceeding. 


14.4.2 Utility’s failure to give the required notice within ten (10) calendar days shall not 
relieve Licensee of its obligation to indemnify Utility unless Licensee is 
materially prejudiced by such failure. 


14.4.3 Licensee shall have the right at any time, by notice to Utility, to participate in or 
assume control of the defense of the claim.  Licensee may utilize counsel of its 
choice. Utility shall cooperate fully with Licensee.  If Licensee assumes control of 
the defense of any third-party claim, Utility shall have the right to participate in 
the defense at its own expense.  If Licensee does not assume control or otherwise 
participate in the defense of a third-party claim, it shall be bound by the results 
obtained by Utility. 


14.4.4 If Licensee assumes the defense of a third-party claim as described above, Utility 
shall not assume liability for or settle, compromise or discharge any third-party 
claim without Licensee’s prior written consent, and Utility will agree to any 
settlement, compromise or discharge of any third-party claim recommended by 
Licensee that releases Utility completely from such claim and does not establish a 
precedent that may adversely affect Utility in the future.  


14.4.5 The Indemnification Procedures set forth in this Section 14.4 are intended to 
apply only to Licensee’s indemnification obligations expressly set forth in this 
Agreement and are not intended to create a separate obligation on the part of 
Licensee to generally indemnify Utility. 


14.5 Municipal Liability Limits.  No provision of this Agreement is intended, or shall be 
construed, to be a waiver for any purpose by Utility of the provisions of Wis. Stat. 
§ 893.80, or any other applicable limits on municipal liability.


ARTICLE 15:  DUTIES, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND EXCULPATION 


15.1 Duty to Inspect.  Licensee acknowledges and agrees that Utility does not warrant the 
condition or safety of Utility's Poles, or the premises surrounding the Poles, and Licensee 
further acknowledges and agrees that it has an obligation to inspect Utility's Poles and/or 
the premises surrounding the Poles, prior to commencing any work on Utility's Poles or 
entering the premises surrounding the Poles. 


15.2 Knowledge of Work Conditions.  By executing this Agreement, Licensee warrants that it 
has acquainted, or will fully acquaint, itself and its employees and/or contractors and 
agents with the conditions relating to the work that Licensee will undertake under this 
Agreement and that it fully understands or will acquaint itself with the facilities, 
difficulties, and restrictions attending the execution of such work. 







18 


15.3 DISCLAIMER. UTILITY MAKES NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES 
WITH REGARD TO UTILITY'S POLES, ALL OF WHICH ARE HEREBY 
DISCLAIMED, AND EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES 
OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 


15.4 Missing Labels.  Licensee acknowledges that Utility does not warrant that all Poles are 
properly labeled and agrees that Utility is not liable for any injuries or damages caused by 
or in connection with missing labels or otherwise improperly labeled Poles.  Licensee 
further agrees to notify Utility immediately if labels or tags are missing or otherwise 
believed to be improper; however, Utility agrees that Licensee is not liable for any 
injuries or damages caused by or in connection with Licensee's failure to so notify Utility. 


15.5 Duty to Supervise.  The Parties further understand and agree that in the performance of 
work under this Agreement, Licensee and its agents, servants, employees, contractors and 
subcontractors will work near electrically energized lines, transformers, or other 
equipment of Utility, and it is the intention that energy therein will not be interrupted 
during the continuance of this Agreement, except in an emergency endangering life, 
grave personal injury, or property.  Licensee shall ensure that its employees, servants, 
agents, contractors and subcontractors have the necessary qualifications, skill, 
knowledge, training, and experience to protect themselves, their fellow employees, 
employees of Utility, and the general public, from harm or injury while performing work 
permitted pursuant to this Agreement. In addition, Licensee shall furnish its employees, 
servants, agents, contractors and subcontractors with competent supervision and 
sufficient and adequate tools and equipment for their work to be performed in a safe 
manner.  Licensee agrees that in emergency situations in which it may be necessary to de-
energize any part of Utility's equipment, Licensee shall ensure that work is suspended 
until the equipment has been de-energized and that no such work is conducted unless and 
until the equipment is made safe. 


15.6 Requests to De-Energize.  In the event Utility de-energizes any equipment or line at 
Licensee's request and for Licensee's benefit and convenience in performing a particular 
segment of any work, Licensee shall reimburse Utility in full for all costs and expenses 
incurred in order to comply with Licensee's request for de-energization of any equipment 
or line.  Before Utility de-energizes any equipment or line, it shall provide upon request 
an estimate of all costs and expenses to be incurred in accommodating Licensee's request. 


15.7 Interruption of Service.  In the event that Licensee shall cause an interruption of service 
by damaging or interfering with any equipment of Utility, Licensee at its expense shall 
immediately do all things reasonable to avoid injury or damages, direct and incidental, 
resulting therefrom and shall notify Utility immediately. 


15.8 Duty to Inform.  Licensee further warrants that it understands the imminent dangers 
(INCLUDING SERIOUS BODILY INJURY OR DEATH FROM 
ELECTROCUTION) inherent in the work necessary to make installations and removals 
and to engage in operations on Utility's Poles by Licensee's employees, servants, agents, 
contractors or subcontractors, and accepts it as its duty and sole responsibility to notify 







19 


and inform Licensee's employees, servants, agents, contractors, or subcontractors of such 
dangers, and to keep them informed regarding same. 


ARTICLE 16:  INSURANCE 


16.1 Policies Required.  At all times during the term of this Agreement, Licensee shall keep in 
force and effect all insurance policies as described below: 


16.1.1 Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance.  Statutory workers' 
compensation benefits and employers' liability insurance with a limit of liability 
no less than $1,000,000 each accident/disease/policy limit.  This policy shall be 
include a waiver of subrogation in favor of Utility. 


16.1.2 Commercial General Liability Insurance.  Policy will be written to provide 
coverage for, but not limited to, the following: premises and operations, products 
and completed operations, personal and advertising injury, blanket contractual 
coverage, independent contractor's coverage and coverage for property damage 
from perils of explosion, collapse or damage to underground utilities (commonly 
known as XCU coverage).  Limits of liability  $5,000,000 per occurrence for 
bodily injury and property damage and $5,000,000 general aggregate including 
$5,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate, $5,000,000 personal and 
advertising injury. 


16.1.3 Automobile Liability Insurance.  Commercial automobile liability policy covering 
all owned, hired and non-owned vehicles. Limits of liability $5,000,000 combined 
single limit each accident for bodily injury and property damage 


16.1.4 Property Insurance.  Each Party to this Agreement will be responsible for 
maintaining property insurance on its own facilities, buildings and other 
improvements, including all equipment, fixtures, and utility structures, fencing, or 
support systems that may be placed on, within, or around Utility Facilities to fully 
protect against hazards of fire, vandalism and malicious mischief, and such other 
perils as are covered by policies of insurance commonly referred to and known as 
"extended coverage" insurance, or shall self-insure such exposures.  


16.2 Qualification; Priority; Contractors' Coverage.  The insurer must be authorized to do 
business under the laws of the State of Wisconsin and have an "A-" or better rating in 
Best's Guide.  Such insurance will be primary. Licensee shall require all contractors and 
all of their subcontractors who perform work on behalf of Licensee to obtain and 
maintain substantially the same coverage with substantially the same limits as required of 
Licensee and shall furnish Utility with a Certificate of Insurance for each such contractor 
or subcontractor. 







20 


16.3 Certificate of Insurance; Other Requirements. 


16.3.1 Upon the execution of this Agreement and within (10) ten days of each insurance 
policy expiration date during the term of this Agreement, Licensee will furnish 
Utility with a certificate of insurance.  The certificate shall reference this 
Agreement and all waivers of subrogation required by this Agreement.  Upon 
receipt of notice from its insurer(s) Licensee shall use commercially reasonable 
efforts to provide Utility with thirty (30) days' advance notice of cancellation of 
insurance during the term of this Agreement. 


16.3.2 Utility, in the name of its municipality, shall be included as an "Additional 
Insured" as their interest may appear under this Agreement under all of the 
policies, except workers' compensation and employer’s liability, which shall be so 
stated on the certificate of insurance.  However, nothing in this Section 16.3.2 
shall be interpreted to require that any insurance policy indemnify any Additional 
Insured against any negligent acts or omissions of any Additional Insured. 


16.3.3 All policies, other than workers' compensation, shall be written on an occurrence 
and not on a claims-made basis. 


16.4 Limits.  The limits of liability set out in this Article 16 may be increased or decreased by 
mutual consent of the Parties, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld by either 
Party, in the event of any factors or occurrences, including substantial increases in the 
level of jury verdicts or judgments or the passage of state, federal or other governmental 
compensation plans or laws which would materially increase or decrease Utility's or 
Licensee's exposure to risk. 


16.5 Prohibited Exclusions.  No policies of insurance required to be obtained by Licensee or 
its contractors or subcontractors shall contain provisions (1) that exclude coverage of 
liability assumed by this Agreement with Utility except as to infringement of patents or 
copyrights or for libel and slander in program material, (2) that exclude coverage of 
liability arising from excavating, collapse, or underground work, (3) that exclude 
coverage for injuries to Utility's employees or agents, or (4) that exclude coverage of 
liability for injuries or damages caused by Licensee's contractors or contractor's 
employees, servants or agents. 


16.6 Deductible/Self-insurance Retention Amounts.  Licensee shall be fully responsible for 
any deductible or self-insured retention amounts contained in its insurance program or for 
any deficiencies in the amounts of insurance maintained. 


16.7 Self-Insurance.  Licensee may self-insure the risks required to be insured under this 
Agreement provided that Licensee has a minimum net worth of $100,000,000.00.  Upon 
request of Utility, Licensee shall furnish evidence of the foregoing net worth.  In the 
event Licensee elects to self-insure, Licensee shall indemnify and hold harmless Utility 
for the same risks, to the same extent, and in the same matters as would the insurer had 
Licensee provided the insurances required in this Article 16. 







21 


ARTICLE 17:  AUTHORIZATION NOT EXCLUSIVE 


17.1 No Exclusivity.  Utility shall have the right to grant, renew and extend rights and 
privileges to others not party to this Agreement, by contract or otherwise, to use Utility 
Facilities covered by this Agreement. Such rights shall not interfere with the rights 
granted to Licensee by the specific Permits issued pursuant to this Agreement. 


ARTICLE 18: ASSIGNMENT 


18.1 Limitations on Assignment. Licensee shall not assign this Agreement or its rights or 
obligations under this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of 
Utility, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.  It shall be 
unreasonable for Utility to withhold or delay consent to an assignment of all of Licensee's 
interests in the Agreement to its Affiliate or to an assignment made in connection with 
the pledge of Licensee's assets subject to this Agreement as security for any Licensee 
financing with financial institutions. 


18.2 Obligations of Assignee/Transferee and Licensee.  No assignment or transfer under this 
Article 18 shall be allowed until the assignee or transferee (including assignment or 
transfer to any assignee or transferee described in Section 18.1) and assumes, in writing, 
all obligations of Licensee arising under this Agreement.  Licensee shall furnish Utility 
with prior written notice of the transfer or assignment, together with the name and 
address of the transferee or assignee.  Notwithstanding any assignment or transfer under 
this Agreement, Licensee shall remain fully liable on this Agreement and shall not be 
released from performing any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement 
without the express written consent to the release of Licensee by Utility. 


18.3 Sub-licensing.  Without Utility's prior written consent, Licensee shall not sub-license any 
rights under this Agreement to a third party (including Licensee's Affiliate(s)), including 
but not limited to allowing third parties to place Attachments on Utility's Poles, including 
Overlashing, or to place Attachments for the benefit of such third parties on Utility's 
Poles.  Any such action shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  The use of 
Licensee's Communications Facilities by third parties (including but not limited to leases 
of dark fiber) that involves no additional Attachment or Overlashing is not subject to the 
provisions of this Section 18.3. 


ARTICLE 19:  FAILURE TO ENFORCE 


19.1 Failure to Enforce.  Failure of Utility or Licensee to take action to enforce compliance 
with any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement or to give notice or declare this 
Agreement or any authorization granted hereunder terminated shall not constitute a 
waiver or relinquishment of any term or condition of this Agreement, but the same shall 
be and remain at all times in full force and effect. 







22 


ARTICLE 20: DEFAULT 


20.1 Utility's Right to Terminate.  Notwithstanding Utility's rights under Article 11, Utility 
shall have the right, pursuant to the procedure set out in Section 20.2, to terminate this 
entire Agreement or any Permit issued hereunder, whenever Licensee is in default of any 
material term or condition of this Agreement, including but not limited to the following 
circumstances: 


20.1.1 Construction, operation or maintenance of Licensee's Communications Facilities 
in violation of law or in aid of any unlawful act or undertaking; or 


20.1.2 Construction, operation or maintenance of Licensee's Communications Facilities 
after any authorization required of Licensee has lawfully been denied or revoked 
by any governmental or private authority; or 


20.1.3 Construction, operation or maintenance of Licensee's Communications Facilities 
without the insurance coverage required under Article 16; or 


20.1.4 Non-payment by Licensee of fees or charges due to Utility. 


20.2 Opportunity to Cure/Termination.  Utility will notify Licensee in writing within ten (10) 
days, or as soon as reasonably practicable, of any condition(s) applicable to Section 20.1. 
Licensee shall take immediate corrective action to eliminate any such condition(s) within 
thirty (30) days, or such longer period mutually agreed to by the Parties, and shall 
confirm in writing to Utility that the cited condition(s) has (have) ceased or been 
corrected. For non-payment by Licensee of any fees or charges due to Utility, Utility will 
notify Licensee in writing of such non-payment.  Licensee shall make such payment 
within ten (10) days after receipt of such notice.  If Licensee fails to discontinue or 
correct such condition(s) and/or fails to give the required confirmation within the above 
timeframes, Utility may immediately terminate this Agreement or any Permit(s).  In the 
event of such termination, Licensee shall remove its Communications Facilities from the 
affected Pole(s) within sixty (60) days of such termination.  If Licensee fails to remove its 
Facilities within that sixty (60) day period or such other longer time period as the Parties 
may agree, Utility may remove such Communications Facilities using its own personnel 
or a contractor and may charge Licensee 125% of the actual cost incurred by Utility.  If 
Utility declines to remove the affected Attachments shall be subject to the Failure to 
Remove Facilities Charge set out in Appendix A until the affected Attachments are 
actually removed. 


ARTICLE 21: TERM OF AGREEMENT 


21.1 Term/Termination.  This Agreement shall become effective as of the Effective Date, and, 
if not terminated in accordance with other provisions of this Agreement, shall continue in 
effect for an initial term of five (5) years. Either Party to this Agreement may terminate 
this Agreement at the end of the initial term by giving to the other Party written notice of 
an intention to terminate this Agreement at least one (1) year prior to the end of such 







23 


term. Upon failure to give such notice, this Agreement shall automatically continue in 
force until terminated by either Party after one (1) year's written notice. 


21.2 Removal.  On termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 21.1, Licensee shall 
remove its Communications Facilities from Utility's Poles within sixty (60) days of such 
termination, except that Utility shall extend this period where the following conditions 
are met:  Licensee is negotiating a new agreement with Utility in good faith and Licensee 
is not in default under this Agreement.  Until such a new agreement is executed, Licensee 
shall continue to make all required payments under this Agreement and Licensee shall be 
subject to all other obligations and requirements of this Agreement during such period.  If 
Licensee fails to remove its Communications Facilities as required by this Section 21.2, 
Utility may remove such Communications Facilities using its own personnel or a 
contractor and charge Licensee 125% of the actual costs incurred by Utility.  If Utility 
declines to remove the affected Attachments, they shall be subject to the Failure to 
Timely Transfer or Remove Facilities Charge set out in Appendix A until the affected 
Attachments are actually removed. 


21.3 Survival of Obligations.  Even after the termination of this Agreement, Licensee's 
indemnity obligations under this Agreement shall continue with respect to any claims or 
demands related to Licensee's Communications Facilities. 


ARTICLE 22: PERFORMANCE BOND 


22.1 Bond Required.  Within sixty (60) days of Utility’s request, Licensee shall provide to 
Utility a performance bond in the amount of $50,000.  The bond shall be with an entity 
and in a form acceptable to Utility.  The purpose of the bond is to ensure Licensee's 
performance of all of its obligations under this Agreement and for the payment by 
Licensee of any claims, liens, taxes, charges, or fees due to Utility which arise by reason 
of the construction, operation, maintenance or removal of Licensee's Communications 
Facilities on or about Utility's Poles.  The bond shall terminate after five (5) years, 
provided that Licensee has faithfully performed its duties under this Agreement during 
that five-year period. 


ARTICLE 23:  MISCELLANEOUS 


23.1 Amending Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be amended, changed, or altered except 
in writing and with approval by authorized representatives of both Parties. 


23.2 Notices.  Wherever in this Agreement notice is required to be given by either Party to the 
other, such notice shall be in writing and shall be effective when personally delivered to, 
when mailed by nationally recognized overnight courier or when mailed by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid and, except where specifically 
provided for elsewhere, properly addressed as follows: 







24 


If to Utility, to: 


Stoughton Municipal Electric Utility 
Attn:  Utilities Director 
600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, Wisconsin  53589  
608-873-3379


If to Licensee, to: 


MCImetro Access Transmission Services Corp. 
400 International Parkway 
Richardson, Texas  75081 


or to such other address as either Party may, from time to time, give the other Party in 
writing. 


23.3 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement supersedes all previous agreements, whether written 
or oral, between Utility and Licensee for placement and maintenance of Licensee's 
Communications Facilities on Poles within the geographical operating area covered by 
this Agreement; and there are no other provisions, terms, or conditions to this Agreement 
except as expressed herein. 


23.4 Severability.  If any provision or portion thereof of this Agreement is or becomes invalid 
under any applicable statute or rule of law, and such invalidity does not materially alter 
the essence of this Agreement to either Party, such provision shall not render 
unenforceable this entire Agreement but rather it is the intent of the Parties that this 
Agreement be administered as if not containing the invalid provision. 


23.5 Governing Law.  The validity, performance and all matters relating to the effect of this 
Agreement and any amendment hereto shall be governed by the laws (without reference 
to choice of law) of the State of Wisconsin. 


23.6 Incorporation of Recitals and Appendices.  The recitals stated above and all appendices to 
this Agreement are incorporated into and constitute part of this Agreement. 


The Parties hereto have executed this Agreement in duplicate effective as of the day and year 
first written above. 


[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 







25 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, ACTING 
THROUGH THE STOUGHTON 
UTILITIES COMMITTEE AND 
CITY OF STOUGHTON COMMON 
COUNCIL


By:_______________________________ 


Name:____________________________ 


Title: ____________________________ 


Date: ____________________________ 


MCIMETRO ACCESS 
TRANSMISSION SERVICES CORP. 


By:_______________________________ 


Name:____________________________ 


Title: ____________________________ 


Date: ____________________________ 


F:\DOCS\WD\23434\12\FINAL\A3302100.DOCX 







1 


APPENDIX A 
POLE ATTACHMENT FEES AND CHARGES 


1. Annual Pole Attachment Fee: (The fee is charged on a per-Pole basis per Section 3.2)


x Commencement Date:  See Section 3.2 of the Agreement: 


x Per-Pole Rate:  The table below illustrates the rate for the first 20 years of the 
Agreement.  Thereafter, the rate will continue to escalate 3% annually. 


Year Amount Year Amount 


2018 $27.86 2028 $37.45 
2019 $28.70 2029 $38.57 
2020 $29.57 2030 $39.73 
2021 $30.45 2031 $40.92 
2022 $31.36 2032 $42.15 
2023 $32.30 2033 $43.41 
2024 $33.27 2034 $44.71 
2025 $34.27 2035 $46.06 
2026 $35.30 2036 $47.44 
2027 $36.36 2037 $48.86 


x Annual Escalator:  3% 


2. Adjustment of Annual Pole Attachment Fee:  Rates to be recalculated every year in
accordance with Exhibit 1 to this Appendix A.


3. Non-Recurring Fees:


x Permit Application Fee: 
x $75.00 for 1 to 10 Poles 
x $100.00 for 11 to 50 Poles 
x $150.00 for 51 or more Poles 
x $100 per cable span when Overlashing existing Attachment 


x Pre-Construction Survey Fee ……… Utility’s Actual Cost (Applicable where 
Utility is responsible for the survey and/or review of the survey provided by 
Licensee.) 


x Make-Ready Work Charges ...............See Article 3 of Agreement 


x Miscellaneous Charges ......................See Article 3 of Agreement 







2 


x Inspection Fees...................................See Section 12.2 of Agreement 


NOTE:   Non-Recurring Fees may be adjusted periodically, but not more often than 
annually, to reflect increases in operating costs, and only after notification to 
Licensee of the proposed increase. 


4. Unauthorized Attachment Charge:
x 3 x Annual Average Attachment Fee, per occurrence. 


5. Failure to Timely Transfer or Remove Facilities Charge:
x 1/4 Annual Average Attachment Fee per day, per Pole, first 30 days; 
x Annual Average Attachment Fee per day, per Pole, second 30 days and thereafter. 







APPENDIX B 
SPECIFICATIONS FOR ATTACHMENTS 


TO UTILITY’S POLES 


Licensee, when making Attachments to Utility’s Poles, will adhere to the following engineering 
and construction practices. 


A. SPECIFICATIONS


1. All Attachments shall be made in accordance with the Engineering Standards as defined in
Section 1.8 of this Agreement.


2. Licensee must meet the specifications indicated in the special construction drawings (B-1
through B-9) contained in this Appendix B.  These drawings include the following:


a. Overhead Minimum Clearances (Drawings B-1 and B-2)


b. Grounding Connections (Drawing B-3)


c. Guy Wire Clearances (Drawing B-4)


d. 120/240 Volt Power Service (Drawing B-5)


e. Minimum Clearance to Service & Roadway (Drawing B-6)


f. Pole Tag Requirements (Drawing B-7)


g. Attachments at Transformer Poles, including Risers (Drawing B-8)


h. Alternate Transformer Pole Attachments, including Risers (Drawing B-9)


3. Licensee must also meet the following specifications:


a. Attachment Height: Poles may be factory predrilled.  Utility will provide Licensee
with instructions as to the proper predrilled holes to be utilized.


b. Orientation on Pole: Cables are normally to be place on the road side to allow for
risers on the back side of the Pole. On installations with existing cables on the Poles,
Utility will specify the side of the Pole to be utilized.  Licensees must maintain their
cables in their relative vertical positions; cables may not cross over the cable of another
attaching entity.


c. Risers are not to be located on the front or rear face of the Pole, nor in line with the
cable route, but are to be in the 45 degree quadrant of the Pole to avoid conflicts with
bolts and other riser installations.


d. Bonding: Licensee’s facilities are to be properly bonded. Consult with Utility for
instructions for proper bonding on steel poles.







2 


e. Anchoring/Guying: All anchors and guys are to be in place before cable installation.
Consult with Utility about the joint use of anchors. Overhead guys are to be bonded to
the messenger if not an integral part thereof.  All down guys must be insulated in
accordance with Engineering Standards.


f. Excess Cable: Excess cable is to be neatly spooled using appropriate devices.  It is not
to be coiled and suspended from a pole or cable.


g. Communication Arms: Communication arms or brackets are not allowed on Utility’s
Poles without permission in writing from Utility. All cable Attachments are to be
directly bolted to the Pole.


h. Tagging: Tags are to be placed at cable deadends, risers, and on lateral attachment
points at no more than 1,000-foot intervals.  Tags are to be at least 5 inches in length
and rolled to fit around the cable. They shall be UV resistant with UV resistant printing,
identifying the cable owner.


i. Power Supplies: Power supplies may be installed on Poles only with written
permission from Utility.


j. Climbing Space: A clear Climbing Space must be maintained at all times on the face
of the Pole. All Attachments must be placed so as to allow and maintain a clear and
proper Climbing Space on the back side of the Pole. Licensee’s cable/wire Attachments
shall be placed on the same side of the Pole as those of other Attaching Entities. In
general, all other Attachments and Risers should be placed on Pole field face quarter
section.


k. Pedestals and Enclosures: Every effort should be made to install pedestals, vaults
and/or enclosures a minimum of four (4) feet from Poles or other Utility Facilities.  In
the event that the placement of pedestals, vaults and/or enclosures a minimum of four
(4) feet from Poles or other Utility Facilities is not practical, Licensee shall contact
Utility to obtain written approval of the proposed placement.  Every effort should be
made to install or relocate Utility Facilities a minimum of four (4) feet from Licensee’s
existing pedestals, vaults and/or enclosures.


B. CERTIFICATION OF LICENSEE’S DESIGN


1. Licensee’s Permit Application must be signed and sealed by a professional engineer,
registered in the State of Wisconsin, or utility approved employee or contractor certifying
that Licensee’s aerial cable design fully complies with the NESC, Utility’s construction
standards and any other applicable federal, state or local codes and/or requirements.







3 


2. This certification shall include the confirmation that the design is in accordance with pole
strength requirements of the NESC, taking into account the effects of Utility Facilities
and other Attaching Entities’ facilities that exist on the Poles without regard to the
condition of the existing facilities.


[Pole Top Drawings Follow] 











































APPENDIX C 
PERMIT APPLICATION PROCESS 


The following procedure is to be followed by Licensee when seeking to make new Attachments 
on Utility’s Poles.  


1. Licensee shall submit a completed Permit Application (Appendix D), which shall include:
route map, information required in Appendix E, installation plans, and recommendations
on Make-Ready Work. Licensee shall prepare the Permit Application in adherence with
Engineering Standards and Specifications (Appendix B).


2. Utility will review the completed Permit Application and discuss any issues with Licensee.
The review may involve an onsite inspection of proposed Attachments with Licensee’s
professional engineer or Utility approved Licensee employee or contractor.


3. Upon receipt of written authorization, Utility will proceed with Make-Ready Work according
to the specific agreed-upon installation plans and the terms of the Agreement, including
payment for the Make-Ready Work charges as set out by Utility and agreed to by Licensee.


4. Upon completion of the Make-Ready Work, Utility will sign and return the Permit
Application, which Permit shall serve as authorization for Licensee to make its Attachment(s)
in accordance with agreed-upon installation plans.


5. Licensee’s professional engineer or Utility-approved employee or contractor shall submit
written certification that he/she has completed the Post-Construction Inspection and that the
installation was done in accordance with the provisions of the Permit. The Post-Construction
Inspection shall be submitted within thirty (30) calendar days after installation is complete.







APPENDIX D 
PERMIT APPLICATION  


FOR ATTACHMENT OR REMOVAL 


PERMIT APPLICATION 


Stoughton Municipal Electric Utility 
Attn:  Utilities Director 
600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589 


Phone:  608-873-3379
E-Mail:  CustomerService@stoughtonutilities.com


Date 


*__________________________ 


APPLICANT  INFORMATION (Licensee) 


Name of 


Company: * 


Address: * 


Contact Person: * 


Phone: * E-mail: * 


Licensee requests permission to occupy Utility’s Poles in accordance with the conditions set forth in the Parties’ 


Pole Attachment License Agreement, dated __________  _____,  20___.


GENERAL APPLICATION INFORMATION 


Location (road name(s), general project 


description) * 


Utility Project Name, Work Order Number 
* 


Project Schedule (planned date of 
construction) * 







Name of Construction Company * 
Address * 
Phone * E-mail * 
Contact Person * 
Construction Drawings (Attach maps, construction specifications, staking sheets, etc.) 
Number of New poles contacted *          Number of  Utility anchors *    
Number of existing contacts to have added facilities *    


Term      Terminate *      pole contacts. 


PLEASE SEE APPENDIX E FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO ACCOMPANY THE PERMIT 
APPLICATION. 


TO BE COMPLETED BY UTILITY PERSONNEL 


Date Permit Application received     Field review  Final review 
Permit Application review by:    


 Permit Application accepted         Date 
 Permit Application fee received  $  Billing Dept. Rcv’d by  


 Permit Application denied.  Date letter of explanation sent 







APPENDIX E 
DISTRIBUTION LINE MINIMUM DESIGN  


REVIEW INFORMATION AND WORKSHEET 


The following Design Review Information must be submitted with each Permit Application, 
unless Utility allows otherwise.  See Appendix F for instructions. 


Each Permit Application must include a report from a professional engineer registered to 
practice in the State of Wisconsin and experienced in electric utility system design or a 
Utility-approved employee or contractor of Licensee.  This report must clearly identify the 
proposed construction and must verify that the Attachments proposed will maintain 
Utility’s compliance with NESC Class B construction for medium loading as outlined in 
NESC Section 25. 


All of the following information must be submitted with the Permit Application, unless 
Utility waives such requirement.  The applicant shall have performed all required 
calculations and be ready to provide the detailed information below within fifteen (15) 
calendar days of notice. 


The following minimum conditions shall be used in the calculations for pole strength: 


1. All single-phase lines shall be assumed to have been reconductored to 1/0 AWG ACSR
(code name Penguin) conductor for both phase and neutral.  (If the Utility’s standard
size conductor is larger, use the larger size.)  If a larger conductor size exists, the
larger size shall be used in the calculations.


2. All three-phase lines shall be assumed to have been reconductored to 336.4 AWG
ACSR conductor for the three phases and the neutral.  (If Utility’s standard size
conductor is larger, enter the larger size.) If existing conductors are larger than 336.4
AWG ACSR, the larger size shall be used in the calculations.


3. All pole lines shall assume a secondary/service conductor, installed from pole to pole
of 1/0 AWG triplex cable, with a messenger.


4. For pole strength calculations, all Poles shall be as they actually exist, or be
considered Class 4 for calculations.


5. All line angles or dead ends shall be guyed and anchored. Transverse pole strength
shall not be assigned to attaching Pole users for line angles.


6. Points of attachment shall be as they actually exist on the Poles.


7. Any Utility-approved joint anchors shall use guy insulators.


8. Licensee shall comply with any Utility-required safety factors in its designs.







Licensee shall comply with any NESC and/or Utility-required safety factors; whichever is more 
conservative, in design. The engineer for the applicant shall provide for each Permit Application 
the following confirmations: 


x Required permits that have been obtained (insert n/a if not applicable): 


________ (y/n) U.S. Corp of Engineers. 


________ (y/n) Highway—state, county, city. 


________ (y/n) Railroad. 


________ (y/n) Local zoning boards, town boards, etc. 


________ (y/n) Joint use permits, if required. 


x Confirm that you have: 


________ (y/n) Obtained appropriate franchise(s). 


________ (y/n) Obtained Pole/anchor easements from land owners. 


________ (y/n) Obtained crossing and overhang permits. 


________ (y/n) Obtained permit to survey R/W. 


________ (y/n) Completed Department of Transportation requirements. 


________ (y/n) Placed permit number on plans. 


________ (y/n) Complied with Underground Facility Location requirements. 


________ (y/n)     Included sag/tension data on proposed cable. 


Calculations are based upon the latest edition of the NESC and the latest editions of the 
requirements of the State of Wisconsin. 


It is Licensee’s responsibility to obtain all necessary permits and easements and provide Utility 
with a copy of each, if requested. 


The engineer for the Permit Applicant shall provide for each Pole the following information: 


General: 


x Licensee’s Project No.  ____________  


x Pole class _______________________ [existing—i.e., 4, 3, 2…] 


x Pole height _____________________ [existing—i.e., 35, 40…] 


x Pole type _______________________ Western Red, Cedar, Douglas Fir…] 


x Pole fore span ___________________ [feet] 







x Pole back span___________________ [feet] 


x Calculated bending  


moment at ground level _________________ [ft–lbs] 


Proposed: 


x Proposed cable: Type______qty ______ dia _____@______  ft above ground line 


x Proposed cable: Type _____ qty ______ dia _____ @_________ ft above ground line 


The minimum vertical clearance under all loading conditions measured from the proposed cable to 
ground level on each conductor span shall be stated above. Variations in topography resulting 
in ground elevation changes shall be considered when stating the minimum vertical clearance 
within a given span. 


Proposed loading data [provide similar data for each cable proposed]: 


A. Weight data (cable and messenger)


1. Vertical weight, bare =  _____________________________________________ [#/ft]


B. Tension data (final tensions on messenger)


1. NESC maximum load for area of construction: ___________________________ [lbs]


2. 60° F, No wind: ___________________________________________________ [lbs]


Permit applicant’s engineer shall provide for each transverse or dead end pole to which guy(s) 
are attached, the following information: 


x Licensee’s Plan Sheet Pole number(s) ___________________________________ 


x Corresponding calculated guy tension under NESC maximum loading conditions 


 ______________________________________________________________ [lbs] 







APPENDIX F 
FIELD DATA SUMMARY SHEET INSTRUCTIONS 


Column Instructions 


Licensee’s Pole Number ...................This must correspond to Licensee’s plan sheet 


Plan Sheet Pole Number………….. Sequential pole count to match drawing. 


Pole Height and Class ......................List the present Pole height and class and list the proposed 
Pole height and class if it is necessary for Utility to replace 
the Pole for clearance, etc. 


Guy Attachments ..............................All unbalanced loading on Poles must be guyed. 
Attachments to Utility’s anchors will only be allowed if 
approved by Utility. 


Attachment Height ...........................Licensee attachment height above ground level. 


Inches Below Utility .........................The number of inches Licensee is to be attached below 
Utility while maintaining clearance, as required in 
Appendix B. 


Span Length ......................................List the span length between each point of attachment. 


Inches Sag .........................................List the messenger sag for the design listed on the cover 
sheet at 60 degrees Fahrenheit. 


Ground Clearance ............................List the ground clearance at the low point of the span. Must 
not be less than the NESC (latest edition). 





		12a-Utilities Pole Attachment - Resolution.pdf

		12b-Utilities - Pole Attachment.pdf






Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, March 12, 2019 @ 7:00 p.m.   


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Denise 


Duranczyk, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson,  Tom Majewski, 


Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, Timothy Riley, and Ben Heili  


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


Clerk Licht called the roll and noted that there were 11 alders present. Heili arrived at 7:03 p.m. 


 Habitat for Humanity “Rock the Block” Presentation  


 


Minutes and Reports: the following minutes and reports were entered into the record.  


A. Public Works (1/17/2019); Parks & Rec (1/16/19); Rivers and Trails Task Force (1/7/19); Public 


Safety (11/28/18)  


B. December 2018 Treasurers Report  


C. January 2019 Treasurers Report 


 


Public Comment Period:  


 


Steve Erdahl, 209 Ashberry Lane, spoke against O-7-2019. He provided the council with a copy of the 


covenants of the neighborhood.  


 


Callie LaPoint, Stoughton Chamber, spoke in support of O-9-2019 and O-10-2019. She added that the 


2-hour is a concern for downtown business owners.  


 


CONSENT AGENDA 


A. February 26, 2019 Council Minutes 


B. R-29-2019- Resolution Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue Operator 


Licenses  


 


Motion by Duranczyk, second by reeves to approve. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


O-7-2019- Amending the zoning classification of 117 Ashberry Lane in the City of Stoughton, WI  


 


Motion by Bartlett, second by Jenson to approve O-7-2019 amending the zoning classification of 117 


Ashberry Lane in the City of Stoughton, WI. Hirsch asked if the City had any responsibility to uphold 


the Eastwood Estates Covenants. Attorney Dregne said that the City does not have a legal responsibility 


to consider the covenants. Motion failed on a vote of 3-9 with Bartlett, Jenson and Heili voting ‘yes’.  


  


  


 







 


O-8-2019- Repealing Zoning Code Section 78-205(10) of the Stoughton Municipal Code, 


Number of Land Uses per Building  


 


Motion carried Bartlett, second by O’Connor to approve O-8-2019 Repealing Zoning Code 


Section 78-205(10) of the Stoughton Municipal Code, Number of Land Uses per Building. 


Motion carried 12-0. 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


R-30-2019- Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Dennis Pince to the Housing Authority 


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Duranczyk to appoint Dennis Pince to Housing Authorizing. 


Motion carried 12-0. 


 


R-31-2019- Annual Report-Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permit  


 


Motion by Reeves, second by Duranczyk to approve R-31-2019 Annual Report-Municipal 


Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permit. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


R-32-2019-Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary Class 


“B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the Stoughton Chamber of 


Commerce for Syttende Mai 2019  


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Riley R-32-2019 Authorizing and directing the proper city 


official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event 


License to the Stoughton Chamber of Commerce for Syttende Mai 2019. Boersma expressed 


concerns about alcohol at a family event. Motion carried 10-2 with Boersma and Duranczyk 


voting no.  


 


 


R-33-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to issue a Six Month Class “B” 


Fermented Malt Beverage License to Stoughton Merchants, Brett Klitzke, agent, located at 600 


Kriedeman Dr.  


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Riley to approve R-33-2019 Authorizing and directing the proper 


City official(s) to issue a Six Month Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License to Stoughton 


Merchants, Brett Klitzke, agent, located at 600 Kriedeman Dr. Duranczyk and Boersma spoke 


against having alcohol in public parks. Motion carried 9-3 with Boersma, Johnson and 


Duranczyk voting ‘no’.  


 


R-34-2019-Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to issue a Class “B” Fermented 


Malt Beverage license and a “Class C” Wine License to Cold Coast LLC, d/b/a 51 South, Trisha 


Brown Agent, located at 208 W Main St.  


 







Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to approve R-34-2019 Authorizing and directing the proper 


City official(s) to issue a Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage license and a “Class C” Wine 


License to Cold Coast LLC, d/b/a 51 South, Trisha Brown Agent, located at 208 W Main St. 


Motion carried 12-0. 


 


O-9-2019- Amending Chapter 70-185 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to 


Forty-eight Hour Parking by creating subsections 4, 5, and 6  


 


Jenson offered O-9-2019 as a first reading. It will be back before the Council on March 26th.  


 


O-10-2019- Amending Chapter 70-191 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to three hour 


parking by creating subsection 5  


 


Jenson offered O-10-2019 as a first reading. It will be back before the Council on March 26th.  


 


O-11-2019- Ordinance relating to electronic smoking devices and providing tobacco products to 


minors  


 


Jenson offered O-11-2019 


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Hirsch to waive the rules to vote on the ordinance after the first 


reading. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


Motion by Jenson, Hirsch to approve O-11-2019 Ordinance relating to electronic smoking 


devices and providing tobacco products to minors. Motion carried 12-0. 


         


ADJOURNMENT 
Motion by Boersma, second by Jenson to adjourn at 8:24 p.m. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


 


Respectfully Submitted,  


 


Holly Licht, City Clerk 








 


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from 


the following applicants: 


 


Name      Place of Business 


  Zerek Zeichert     Kwik Trip #893 


  Nadine Majewski    Kwik Trip #893 


  Karen Backes     Kwik Trip #893 


  Nickademus Hill    51 South 


Matt Reckard     Rev Jim’s 


    


 


WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an 


Operator Licenses to said applicants, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above named 


applicants. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 


 


 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 
Committee 


Action: 


 
N/A 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: R-35-2019 


 
Date Introduced:   March 26, 2019 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Chapter 70-185 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to Forty-eight-hour parking by 


creating subsections 4, 5, and 6. 


Committee Action:    Public Safety committee recommends  


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O-9-2019 First Reading: 


Second Reading: 


March 12, 2019 


March 26, 2019 


 


1. The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


              Sec. 70-185. – Forty-eight-hour Parking. 


 


    No vehicle shall be parked or left standing for longer than 48 hours at the following locations: 


(1) The north municipal parking lot (Block 21 original plat) excluding the first three rows of parking stalls 


adjacent to and north of the alley.  


        (2) The south municipal parking lot (Block 22 original plat) excluding the first two rows of parking stalls   


              adjacent to and south of the alley.  


 


        (3) The Sixth Street municipal parking lot (corner of Jefferson Street and Sixth Street).  


 


        (4) The municipal parking lot on the west side of the 300 Block of S. Fourth Street (Library lot). 


 


        (5) The municipal parking lot at 209 W. Washington Street (Senior Center) 


 


        (6) The municipal parking lot at the northeast corner of S. Fourth Street and East Main Street. 


 


2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 


 


 


 
 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Chapter 70-191 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to three hour parking by creating 


subsection 5 


Committee Action:    Public Safety committee recommends  


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O-10-2019 First Reading:  


Second Reading: 


March 12, 2019 


March 26, 2019 


 


1. The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


            Sec. 70-191. - Three-hour customer parking. 


     No vehicle shall be parked or left standing for longer than three hours between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and  


     5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, at the following locations:  


            (1) For the ten parking stalls behind the tenants' building of the new Senior Center located at 248 West   


Main Street for use by customers and clients of tenants 


 


           (2) The first three rows of parking stalls adjacent to and north of the alley in the north municipal parking lot 


in Block 21, original plat of the city.  


 


          (3) The first two rows of parking stalls adjacent to and south of the alley in the south municipal parking lot in 


Block 22, original plat of the city.  


 


          (4) The municipal parking lot on the west side of the 300 block of South Fourth Street.  


          (5) The municipal parking lot at 209 W. Washington Street (Senior Center lot) 


 


2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 


 


 


 
 








 


QB\56371639.1  


RESOLUTION NO. R-36-2019 
 


RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE 


OF $7,430,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY 


NOTES, SERIES 2019A 


 


WHEREAS, on February 12, 2019, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane 


County, Wisconsin (the "City") adopted a resolution (the "Set Sale Resolution"), providing for 


the sale of General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2019A for public purposes, including 


paying the cost of 2019 Capital Improvement Plan projects and Tax Increment District project 


costs (the "Project");  


 


WHEREAS, the Common Council hereby finds and determines that the Project is within 


the City's power to undertake and therefore serves a "public purpose" as that term is defined in 


Section 67.04(1)(b), Wisconsin Statutes;  


 


WHEREAS, the City is authorized by the provisions of Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin 


Statutes, to borrow money and issue general obligation promissory notes (the "Notes") for such 


public purposes;  


 


WHEREAS, pursuant to the Set Sale Resolution, the City has directed Springsted 


Incorporated ("Springsted") to take the steps necessary to sell the Notes to pay the cost of the 


Project;  


 


WHEREAS, Springsted, in consultation with the officials of the City, prepared an 


Official Terms of Offering (a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated 


herein by this reference) setting forth the details of and the bid requirements for the Notes and 


indicating that the Notes would be offered for public sale on March 26, 2019;  


 


WHEREAS, the City Clerk (in consultation with Springsted) caused a form of notice of 


the sale to be published and/or announced and caused the Official Terms of Offering to be 


distributed to potential bidders offering the Notes for public sale on March 26, 2019;  


 


WHEREAS, the City has duly received bids for the Notes as described on the Bid 


Tabulation attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference (the "Bid 


Tabulation"); and  


 


WHEREAS, it has been determined that the bid proposal (the "Proposal") submitted by 


the financial institution listed first on the Bid Tabulation fully complies with the bid 


requirements set forth in the Official Terms of Offering and is deemed to be the most 


advantageous to the City.  Springsted has recommended that the City accept the Proposal.  A 


copy of said Proposal submitted by such institution (the "Purchaser") is attached hereto as 


Exhibit C and incorporated herein by this reference. 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City that: 







 


 -2- 
QB\56371639.1  


Section 1.  Ratification of the Official Terms of Offering and Offering Materials.  The 


Common Council hereby ratifies and approves the details of the Notes set forth in Exhibit A 


attached hereto as and for the details of the Notes.  The Official Terms of Offering and any other 


offering materials prepared and circulated by Springsted are hereby ratified and approved in all 


respects.  All actions taken by officers of the City and Springsted in connection with the 


preparation and distribution of the Official Terms of Offering, and any other offering materials 


are hereby ratified and approved in all respects. 


Section 1A.  Authorization and Award of the Notes.  For the purpose of paying the cost 


of the Project, there shall be borrowed pursuant to Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin Statutes, the 


principal sum of SEVEN MILLION FOUR HUNDRED THIRTY THOUSAND DOLLARS 


($7,430,000) from the Purchaser in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Proposal.  


The Proposal of the Purchaser offering to purchase the Notes for the sum set forth on the 


Proposal (as modified on the Bid Tabulation and reflected in the Pricing Summary referenced 


below and incorporated herein), plus accrued interest to the date of delivery, resulting in a true 


interest cost as set forth on the Proposal, is hereby accepted.  The Mayor and City Clerk or other 


appropriate officers of the City are authorized and directed to execute an acceptance of the 


Proposal on behalf of the City.  The good faith deposit of the Purchaser shall be retained by the 


City Treasurer and applied in accordance with the Official Terms of Offering, and any good faith 


deposits submitted by unsuccessful bidders shall be promptly returned.  The Notes shall bear 


interest at the rates set forth on the Proposal. 


 


Section 2.  Terms of the Notes.  The Notes shall be designated "General Obligation 


Promissory Notes, Series 2019A"; shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of 


$7,430,000; shall be dated their date of issuance; shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or any 


integral multiple thereof; shall be numbered R-1 and upward; and shall bear interest at the rates 


per annum and mature on April 1 of each year, in the years and principal amounts as set forth on 


the Pricing Summary attached hereto as Exhibit D-1 and incorporated herein by this reference.  


Interest shall be payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year commencing on 


April 1, 2020.  Interest shall be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day 


months and will be rounded pursuant to the rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.  


The schedule of principal and interest payments due on the Notes is set forth on the Debt Service 


Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit D-2 and incorporated herein by this reference (the 


"Schedule"). 


 


Section 3.  Redemption Provisions.  The Notes maturing on April 1, 2027 and thereafter 


are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the City, on April 1, 2026 or on any 


date thereafter.  Said Notes are redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities 


selected by the City, and within each maturity by lot, at the principal amount thereof, plus 


accrued interest to the date of redemption. 


[If the Proposal specifies that any of the Notes are subject to mandatory redemption, the 


terms of such mandatory redemption shall be set forth on an attachment hereto as Exhibit MRP 


and incorporated herein by this reference.  Upon the optional redemption of any of the Notes 


subject to mandatory redemption, the principal amount of such Notes so redeemed shall be 







 


 -3- 
QB\56371639.1  


credited against the mandatory redemption payments established in Exhibit MRP for such Notes 


in such manner as the City shall direct.] 


Section 4.  Form of the Notes.  The Notes shall be issued in registered form and shall be 


executed and delivered in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit E and incorporated 


herein by this reference. 


Section 5.  Tax Provisions. 


(A)  Direct Annual Irrepealable Tax Levy.  For the purpose of paying the 


principal of and interest on the Notes as the same becomes due, the full faith, credit and 


resources of the City are hereby irrevocably pledged, and there is hereby levied upon all of the 


taxable property of the City a direct annual irrepealable tax in the years 2019 through 2028 for 


payments due in the years 2020 through 2029 in the amounts set forth on the Schedule. 


(B)  Tax Collection.  So long as any part of the principal of or interest on the 


Notes remains unpaid, the City shall be and continue without power to repeal such levy or 


obstruct the collection of said tax until all such payments have been made or provided for.  After 


the issuance of the Notes, said tax shall be, from year to year, carried onto the tax roll of the City 


and collected in addition to all other taxes and in the same manner and at the same time as other 


taxes of the City for said years are collected, except that the amount of tax carried onto the tax 


roll may be reduced in any year by the amount of any surplus money in the Debt Service Fund 


Account created below. 


(C)  Additional Funds.  If at any time there shall be on hand insufficient funds 


from the aforesaid tax levy to meet principal and/or interest payments on said Notes when due, 


the requisite amounts shall be paid from other funds of the City then available, which sums shall 


be replaced upon the collection of the taxes herein levied. 


 


Section 6.  Segregated Debt Service Fund Account. 


 


(A)  Creation and Deposits.  There be and there hereby is established in the 


treasury of the City, if one has not already been created, a debt service fund, separate and distinct 


from every other fund, which shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 


accounting principles.  Debt service or sinking funds established for obligations previously 


issued by the City may be considered as separate and distinct accounts within the debt service 


fund. 


 


Within the debt service fund, there hereby is established a separate and distinct account 


designated as the "Debt Service Fund Account for General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 


2019A" (the "Debt Service Fund Account") and such account shall be maintained until the 


indebtedness evidenced by the Notes is fully paid or otherwise extinguished.  There shall be 


deposited into the Debt Service Fund Account (i) all accrued interest received by the City at the 


time of delivery of and payment for the Notes; (ii) any premium which may be received by the 


City above the par value of the Notes and accrued interest thereon; (iii) all money raised by the 


taxes herein levied and any amounts appropriated for the specific purpose of meeting principal of 


and interest on the Notes when due; (iv) such other sums as may be necessary at any time to pay 







 


 -4- 
QB\56371639.1  


principal of and interest on the Notes when due; (v) surplus monies in the Borrowed Money 


Fund as specified below; and (vi) such further deposits as may be required by Section 67.11, 


Wisconsin Statutes. 


 


(B)  Use and Investment.  No money shall be withdrawn from the Debt Service 


Fund Account and appropriated for any purpose other than the payment of principal of and 


interest on the Notes until all such principal and interest has been paid in full and the Notes 


canceled; provided (i) the funds to provide for each payment of principal of and interest on the 


Notes prior to the scheduled receipt of taxes from the next succeeding tax collection may be 


invested in direct obligations of the United States of America maturing in time to make such 


payments when they are due or in other investments permitted by law; and (ii) any funds over 


and above the amount of such principal and interest payments on the Notes may be used to 


reduce the next succeeding tax levy, or may, at the option of the City, be invested by purchasing 


the Notes as permitted by and subject to Section 67.11(2)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, or in permitted 


municipal investments under the pertinent provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes ("Permitted 


Investments"), which investments shall continue to be a part of the Debt Service Fund Account.  


Any investment of the Debt Service Fund Account shall at all times conform with the provisions 


of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and any applicable Treasury 


Regulations (the "Regulations"). 


 


(C)  Remaining Monies.  When all of the Notes have been paid in full and 


canceled, and all Permitted Investments disposed of, any money remaining in the Debt Service 


Fund Account shall be transferred and deposited in the general fund of the City, unless the 


Common Council directs otherwise. 


 


Section 7.  Proceeds of the Notes; Segregated Borrowed Money Fund.  The proceeds of 


the Notes (the "Note Proceeds") (other than any premium and accrued interest which must be 


paid at the time of the delivery of the Notes into the Debt Service Fund Account created above) 


shall be deposited into a special fund separate and distinct from all other funds of the City and 


disbursed solely for the purpose or purposes for which borrowed or for the payment of the 


principal of and the interest on the Notes.  Monies in the Borrowed Money Fund may be 


temporarily invested in Permitted Investments.  Any monies, including any income from 


Permitted Investments, remaining in the Borrowed Money Fund after the purpose or purposes for 


which the Notes have been issued have been accomplished, and, at any time, any monies as are 


not needed and which obviously thereafter cannot be needed for such purpose(s) shall be 


deposited in the Debt Service Fund Account. 


Section 8.  No Arbitrage.  All investments made pursuant to this Resolution shall be 


Permitted Investments, but no such investment shall be made in such a manner as would cause 


the Notes to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code or the 


Regulations and an officer of the City, charged with the responsibility for issuing the Notes, shall 


certify as to facts, estimates, circumstances and reasonable expectations in existence on the date 


of delivery of the Notes to the Purchaser which will permit the conclusion that the Notes are not 


"arbitrage bonds," within the meaning of the Code or Regulations. 


Section 9.  Compliance with Federal Tax Laws.  (a)  The City represents and covenants 


that the projects financed by the Notes and the ownership, management and use of the projects 







 


 -5- 
QB\56371639.1  


will not cause the Notes to be "private activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 141 of the 


Code.  The City further covenants that it shall comply with the provisions of the Code to the 


extent necessary to maintain the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Notes including, if 


applicable, the rebate requirements of Section 148(f) of the Code.  The City further covenants 


that it will not take any action, omit to take any action or permit the taking or omission of any 


action within its control (including, without limitation, making or permitting any use of the 


proceeds of the Notes) if taking, permitting or omitting to take such action would cause any of 


the Notes to be an arbitrage bond or a private activity bond within the meaning of the Code or 


would otherwise cause interest on the Notes to be included in the gross income of the recipients 


thereof for federal income tax purposes.  The City Clerk or other officer of the City charged with 


the responsibility of issuing the Notes shall provide an appropriate certificate of the City 


certifying that the City can and covenanting that it will comply with the provisions of the Code 


and Regulations. 


 


(b) The City also covenants to use its best efforts to meet the requirements and 


restrictions of any different or additional federal legislation which may be made applicable to the 


Notes provided that in meeting such requirements the City will do so only to the extent 


consistent with the proceedings authorizing the Notes and the laws of the State of Wisconsin and 


to the extent that there is a reasonable period of time in which to comply. 


 


Section 10.  Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  The Notes are hereby 


designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265 of the Code, 


relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax 


purposes, interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.   


 


Section 11.  Execution of the Notes; Closing; Professional Services.  The Notes shall be 


issued in printed form, executed on behalf of the City by the manual or facsimile signatures of 


the Mayor and City Clerk, authenticated, if required, by the Fiscal Agent (defined below), sealed 


with its official or corporate seal, if any, or a facsimile thereof, and delivered to the Purchaser 


upon payment to the City of the purchase price thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of 


delivery (the "Closing").  The facsimile signature of either of the officers executing the Notes 


may be imprinted on the Notes in lieu of the manual signature of the officer but, unless the City 


has contracted with a fiscal agent to authenticate the Notes, at least one of the signatures 


appearing on each Note shall be a manual signature.  In the event that either of the officers 


whose signatures appear on the Notes shall cease to be such officers before the Closing, such 


signatures shall, nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes to the same extent as if they 


had remained in office until the Closing.  The aforesaid officers are hereby authorized and 


directed to do all acts and execute and deliver the Notes and all such documents, certificates and 


acknowledgements as may be necessary and convenient to effectuate the Closing.  The City 


hereby authorizes the officers and agents of the City to enter into, on its behalf, agreements and 


contracts in conjunction with the Notes, including but not limited to agreements and contracts for 


legal, trust, fiscal agency, disclosure and continuing disclosure, and rebate calculation services.  


Any such contract heretofore entered into in conjunction with the issuance of the Notes is hereby 


ratified and approved in all respects. 


Section 12.  Payment of the Notes; Fiscal Agent.  The principal of and interest on the 


Notes shall be paid by Associated Trust Company, National Association, Green Bay, Wisconsin, 







 


 -6- 
QB\56371639.1  


which is hereby appointed as the City's registrar and fiscal agent pursuant to the provisions of 


Section 67.10(2), Wisconsin Statutes (the "Fiscal Agent").  The City hereby authorizes the 


Mayor and City Clerk or other appropriate officers of the City to enter a Fiscal Agency 


Agreement between the City and the Fiscal Agent.  Such contract may provide, among other 


things, for the performance by the Fiscal Agent of the functions listed in Wis. Stats. Sec. 


67.10(2)(a) to (j), where applicable, with respect to the Notes. 


 


Section 13.  Persons Treated as Owners; Transfer of Notes.  The City shall cause books 


for the registration and for the transfer of the Notes to be kept by the Fiscal Agent.  The person in 


whose name any Note shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner 


thereof for all purposes and payment of either principal or interest on any Note shall be made 


only to the registered owner thereof.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy 


and discharge the liability upon such Note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 


Any Note may be transferred by the registered owner thereof by surrender of the Note at 


the office of the Fiscal Agent, duly endorsed for the transfer or accompanied by an assignment 


duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing.  Upon such 


transfer, the Mayor and City Clerk shall execute and deliver in the name of the transferee or 


transferees a new Note or Notes of a like aggregate principal amount, series and maturity and the 


Fiscal Agent shall record the name of each transferee in the registration book.  No registration 


shall be made to bearer.  The Fiscal Agent shall cancel any Note surrendered for transfer. 


The City shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 


authorized to execute any new Note or Notes necessary to effect any such transfer. 


Section 14.  Record Date.  The 15th day of the calendar month next preceding each 


interest payment date shall be the record date for the Notes (the "Record Date").  Payment of 


interest on the Notes on any interest payment date shall be made to the registered owners of the 


Notes as they appear on the registration book of the City at the close of business on the Record 


Date. 


 


Section 15.  Utilization of The Depository Trust Company Book-Entry-Only System.  In 


order to make the Notes eligible for the services provided by The Depository Trust Company, 


New York, New York ("DTC"), the City agrees to the applicable provisions set forth in the 


Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations, which the City Clerk or other authorized representative 


of the City is authorized and directed to execute and deliver to DTC on behalf of the City to the 


extent an effective Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations is not presently on file in the City 


Clerk's office. 


 


Section 16.  Official Statement.  The Common Council hereby approves the Preliminary 


Official Statement with respect to the Notes and deems the Preliminary Official Statement as 


"final" as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and 


Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Rule").  All 


actions taken by officers of the City in connection with the preparation of such Preliminary 


Official Statement and any addenda to it or final Official Statement are hereby ratified and 


approved.  In connection with the Closing, the appropriate City official shall certify the 


Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda or final Official Statement.  The City Clerk shall 







 


 -7- 
QB\56371639.1  


cause copies of the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda or final Official Statement to 


be distributed to the Purchaser. 


 


Section 17.  Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure.  The City hereby covenants 


and agrees, for the benefit of the owners of the Notes, to enter into a written undertaking (the 


"Undertaking") if required by the Rule to provide continuing disclosure of certain financial 


information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain events in 


accordance with the Rule.  The Undertaking shall be enforceable by the owners of the Notes or 


by the Purchaser on behalf of such owners (provided that the rights of the owners and the 


Purchaser to enforce the Undertaking shall be limited to a right to obtain specific performance of 


the obligations thereunder and any failure by the City to comply with the provisions of the 


Undertaking shall not be an event of default with respect to the Notes). 


 


To the extent required under the Rule, the Mayor and City Clerk, or other officer of the 


City charged with the responsibility for issuing the Notes, shall provide a Continuing Disclosure 


Certificate for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the details and terms of the 


City's Undertaking. 


 


Section 18.  Record Book.  The City Clerk shall provide and keep the transcript of 


proceedings as a separate record book (the "Record Book") and shall record a full and correct 


statement of every step or proceeding had or taken in the course of authorizing and issuing the 


Notes in the Record Book. 


 


Section 19.  Bond Insurance.  If the Purchaser determines to obtain municipal bond 


insurance with respect to the Notes, the officers of the City are authorized to take all actions 


necessary to obtain such municipal bond insurance.  The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to 


agree to such additional provisions as the bond insurer may reasonably request and which are 


acceptable to the Mayor and City Clerk including provisions regarding restrictions on investment 


of Note proceeds, the payment procedure under the municipal bond insurance policy, the rights 


of the bond insurer in the event of default and payment of the Notes by the bond insurer and 


notices to be given to the bond insurer.  In addition, any reference required by the bond insurer to 


the municipal bond insurance policy shall be made in the form of Note provided herein. 


  







 


 -8- 
QB\56371639.1  


 


Section 20.  Conflicting Resolutions; Severability; Effective Date.  All prior resolutions, 


rules or other actions of the Common Council or any parts thereof in conflict with the provisions 


hereof shall be, and the same are, hereby rescinded insofar as the same may so conflict.  In the 


event that any one or more provisions hereof shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid, 


such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions hereof.  The foregoing shall take 


effect immediately upon adoption and approval in the manner provided by law. 


 


Adopted, approved and recorded March 26, 2019. 


 


 


 


_____________________________ 


Tim B. Swadley 


Mayor 


ATTEST: 


____________________________ 


Holly Licht 


City Clerk 


 (SEAL) 


 







 


QB\56371639.1  


EXHIBIT A 


 


Official Terms of Offering 


 


To be provided by Springsted Incorporated and incorporated into the Resolution. 


 


 


(See Attached) 


 







 


QB\56371639.1  


EXHIBIT B 


 


Bid Tabulation 


 


 


 


To be provided by Springsted Incorporated and incorporated into the Resolution. 


 


 


(See Attached) 


 







 


QB\56371639.1  


EXHIBIT C 


 


Winning Bid 


 


 


To be provided by Springsted Incorporated and incorporated into the Resolution. 


 


 


(See Attached) 







 


QB\56371639.1  


EXHIBIT D-1 


 


Pricing Summary 


 


To be provided by Springsted Incorporated and incorporated into the Resolution. 


 


 


(See Attached) 







 


QB\56371639.1  


EXHIBIT D-2 


 


Debt Service Schedule and Irrepealable Tax Levies 


 


To be provided by Springsted Incorporated and incorporated into the Resolution.  


 


(See Attached) 







 


QB\56371639.1  


[EXHIBIT MRP 


 


Mandatory Redemption Provision 


The Notes due on April 1, ____, ____ and ____ (the "Term Bonds") are subject to 


mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot (as selected by the Depository) at a redemption 


price equal to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued 


interest to the date of redemption, from debt service fund deposits which are required to be made 


in amounts sufficient to redeem on April 1 of each year the respective amount of Term Bonds 


specified below: 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1,         


 Redemption 


       Date       Amount 


 ____ $______ 


 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______ (maturity) 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1,         


 Redemption 


       Date       Amount 


 ____ $______ 


 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______ (maturity) 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1,         


 Redemption 


       Date       Amount 


 ____ $______ 


 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______ (maturity) 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on April 1,         


 Redemption 


       Date       Amount 


 ____ $______ 


 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______ (maturity)] 







 


QB\56371639.1  


EXHIBIT E 


 


(Form of Note) 


 


 


UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 


REGISTERED STATE OF WISCONSIN DOLLARS 


DANE COUNTY 


NO. R-___ CITY OF STOUGHTON $_______ 


GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTE, SERIES 2019A 


 


MATURITY DATE: ORIGINAL DATE OF ISSUE: INTEREST RATE: CUSIP: 


    


April 1, _____                ,           ____% ______ 


 


DEPOSITORY OR ITS NOMINEE NAME:  CEDE & CO. 


PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: _______________________ THOUSAND DOLLARS 


($__________) 


FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the "City"), 


hereby acknowledges itself to owe and promises to pay to the Depository or its Nominee Name 


(the "Depository") identified above (or to registered assigns), on the maturity date identified 


above, the principal amount identified above, and to pay interest thereon at the rate of interest per 


annum identified above, all subject to the provisions set forth herein regarding redemption prior 


to maturity.  Interest shall be payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year 


commencing on April 1, 2020 until the aforesaid principal amount is paid in full.  Both the 


principal of and interest on this Note are payable to the registered owner in lawful money of the 


United States.  Interest payable on any interest payment date shall be paid by wire transfer to the 


Depository in whose name this Note is registered on the Bond Register maintained by Associated 


Trust Company, National Association, Green Bay, Wisconsin (the "Fiscal Agent") or any 


successor thereto at the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding 


each interest payment date (the "Record Date").  This Note is payable as to principal upon 


presentation and surrender hereof at the office of the Fiscal Agent. 


For the prompt payment of this Note together with interest hereon as aforesaid and for the 


levy of taxes sufficient for that purpose, the full faith, credit and resources of the City are hereby 


irrevocably pledged. 


This Note is one of an issue of Notes aggregating the principal amount of $7,430,000, all 


of which are of like tenor, except as to denomination, interest rate, maturity date and redemption 


provision, issued by the City pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin Statutes, 


for public purposes including paying the cost of 2019 Capital Improvement Plan projects and 


Tax Increment District project costs, as authorized by a resolution adopted on March 26, 2019.  


Said resolution is recorded in the official minutes of the Common Council for said date. 







 


 -2- 
QB\56371639.1  


The Notes maturing on April 1, 2027 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to 


maturity, at the option of the City, on April 1, 2026 or on any date thereafter.  Said Notes are 


redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities selected by the City, and within 


each maturity by lot (as selected by the Depository), at the principal amount thereof, plus 


accrued interest to the date of redemption. 


 


[The Notes maturing in the years ________ are subject to mandatory redemption by lot 


as provided in the resolution authorizing the Notes, at the redemption price of par plus accrued 


interest to the date of redemption and without premium.] 


 


In the event the Notes are redeemed prior to maturity, as long as the Notes are in 


book-entry-only form, official notice of the redemption will be given by mailing a notice by 


registered or certified mail, overnight express delivery, facsimile transmission, electronic 


transmission or in any other manner required by the Depository, to the Depository not less than 


thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date.  If less than all of the 


Notes of a maturity are to be called for redemption, the Notes of such maturity to be redeemed 


will be selected by lot.  Such notice will include but not be limited to the following:  the 


designation, date and maturities of the Notes called for redemption, CUSIP numbers, and the 


date of redemption.  Any notice provided as described herein shall be conclusively presumed to 


have been duly given, whether or not the registered owner receives the notice.  The Notes shall 


cease to bear interest on the specified redemption date provided that federal or other immediately 


available funds sufficient for such redemption are on deposit at the office of the Depository at 


that time.  Upon such deposit of funds for redemption the Notes shall no longer be deemed to be 


outstanding. 


It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, things and acts required by law to 


exist or to be done prior to and in connection with the issuance of this Note have been done, have 


existed and have been performed in due form and time; that the aggregate indebtedness of the 


City, including this Note and others issued simultaneously herewith, does not exceed any 


limitation imposed by law or the Constitution of the State of Wisconsin; and that a direct annual 


irrepealable tax has been levied sufficient to pay this Note, together with the interest thereon, 


when and as payable. 


This Note has been designated by the Common Council as a "qualified tax-exempt 


obligation" pursuant to the provisions of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 


1986, as amended. 


This Note is transferable only upon the books of the City kept for that purpose at the 


office of the Fiscal Agent, only in the event that the Depository does not continue to act as 


depository for the Notes, and the City appoints another depository, upon surrender of the Note to 


the Fiscal Agent, by the registered owner in person or his duly authorized attorney, together with 


a written instrument of transfer (which may be endorsed hereon) satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent 


duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney.  Thereupon a new fully 


registered Note in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the new depository in 







 


 -3- 
QB\56371639.1  


exchange therefor and upon the payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the City for any tax, 


fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such registration.  The 


Fiscal Agent shall not be obliged to make any transfer of the Notes (i) after the Record Date, (ii) 


during the fifteen (15) calendar days preceding the date of any publication of notice of any 


proposed redemption of the Notes, or (iii) with respect to any particular Note, after such Note has 


been called for redemption.  The Fiscal Agent and City may treat and consider the Depository in 


whose name this Note is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving 


payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price hereof and interest due hereon 


and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Notes are issuable solely as negotiable, fully-


registered Notes without coupons in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. 


This Note shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose until the Certificate of 


Authentication hereon shall have been signed by the Fiscal Agent. 


No delay or omission on the part of the owner hereof to exercise any right hereunder shall 


impair such right or be considered as a waiver thereof or as a waiver of or acquiescence in any 


default hereunder. 


  







 


 -4- 
QB\56371639.1  


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, by its 


governing body, has caused this Note to be executed for it and in its name by the manual or 


facsimile signatures of its duly qualified Mayor and City Clerk; and to be sealed with its official 


or corporate seal, if any, all as of the original date of issue specified above. 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 


 


By: ______________________________ 


Tim B. Swadley 


Mayor 


 


(SEAL) 


 


By: ______________________________ 


Holly Licht 


City Clerk 


  







 


 -5- 
QB\56371639.1  


Date of Authentication:  _______________, ______ 


 


CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 


 


 This Note is one of the Notes of the issue authorized by the within-mentioned resolution 


of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin. 


 


ASSOCIATED TRUST COMPANY, 


NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 


GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN 


 


 


 


By____________________________ 


        Authorized Signatory 







 


 -6- 
QB\56371639.1  


ASSIGNMENT 


FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 


____________________________________________________________________________ 


(Name and Address of Assignee) 


____________________________________________________________________________ 


(Social Security or other Identifying Number of Assignee) 


the within Note and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 


______________________________________, Legal Representative, to transfer said Note on 


the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 


Dated:  _____________________ 


Signature Guaranteed: 


_____________________________   ________________________________ 


(e.g. Bank, Trust Company    (Depository or Nominee Name) 


or Securities Firm) 


NOTICE:  This signature must correspond with the 


name of the Depository or Nominee Name as it 


appears upon the face of the within Note in every 


particular, without alteration or enlargement or any 


change whatever. 


____________________________ 


(Authorized Officer) 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589 
 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) write off the 2013 – 2017 Delinquent Personal Property tax 


bills that have proven to be uncollectable for a total amount of $2,006.77. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee approved  


 
Fiscal Impact: $2,006.77 
 
File Number: 


 
R-37-2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
March 26, 2019 


 


WHEREAS, the 2013 – 2017 Personal Property tax bills have proven to be uncollectable and  


 


WHEREAS, the amounts paid to the County, Stoughton Area School District and MATC have been 


charged back to those jurisdictions and payment has been received from them for the 2016 and 2017 bills 


in the amount of $1,428.69 and  


 


WHEREAS, your Finance Committee met on March 26, 2019 to consider writing off unpaid Personal 


Property tax amounts due to the City of Stoughton and recommends that the amount of $2,006.77 be 


written off as uncollectable for the following Businesses: 


 


Business    Year  Amount Reason__________ 
Charisma Salon   2013-14 & 17 $910.86 Closed/Uncollectable 


Larry Roberts Auto   2014-17 $207.41 Closed/Uncollectable 


Larry Roberts Electric   2015  $87.98  Closed/Uncollectable 


Right Path Counseling Service 2016-17 $215.18 Closed/Uncollectable 


Back to The Bean Coffee  2017  $77.53  Closed/Uncollectable  


Hair Designs by Colleen  2017  $62.02  Closed/Uncollectable 


Millar Tax Service   2017  $91.49  Closed/Uncollectable 


Montage    2017  $155.06 Closed/Uncollectable 


Nelson Cards    2017  $41.09  Closed/Uncollectable 


Silverado Spa & Salon  2017  $93.04  Closed/Uncollectable 


Silverado Tan    2017  $17.05  Closed/Uncollectable 


Studio Hair Salon   2017  $48.06  Closed/Uncollectable 


 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby directed and authorized to write off the above delinquent Personal Property in the amount of 


$2,006.77 as recommended. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 







                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 
 

































































































































		08a-R-37-2019-Resolution PP write offs.pdf

		08b-Personal Property Resolution & backup.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Advance 


Construction, Inc. for the 2019 Street and Utility Reconstruction Contract 1-2019. 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee approved 5 -0 (with Mayor voting yes) 


Utilities Committee meets March 26, 2019 


  
Fiscal Impact:  $1,332,876 (Street and Stormwater) 


$1,684,519 (Stoughton Utilities) 


 


 


   
File Number: 


 
R -38- 2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
March 26, 2019 


 


WHEREAS, Contract 1-2019 includes street reconstruction along with sidewalk, stormwater, water and 


sanitary sewer improvements to Lowell Street, Monroe Street and Patterson Street; and 


 


WHEREAS, The City received six competitive bids for the 2019 Street & Utility Reconstruction 


Project; and 


 


WHEREAS, Strand & Associates, the City’s contracted engineering firm, has reviewed the bids and 


recommends awarding the contract to the low responsible bidder, Advance Construction, Inc.; and 


 


WHEREAS, the portion of the contract for street and stormwater work is $1,332,876 and Stoughton 


Utilities’ portion of the project including Bid Alternative #1 is $1,684,519, and  


 


WHEREAS, the Finance Committee and Utilities Committee have reviewed the funding for their 


respective portions of the project; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby directed and authorized to enter into an agreement with Advance Construction, Inc. for 


$3,017,395.50 conditioned upon approval as to form by the City Attorney.  


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 
 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R-2019 Resolution - 2019 Street Construction Project.docx 

























































		09a-R-38-2019 Resolution - 2019 Street Construction Project.pdf

		09b--Bid Summary Letter with Bid Tab.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
ADOPTION OF A PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN  


FOR THE CITY OF STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 
Committee Action: 


 
N/A 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None. 


 
File Number: 


 
R -39- 2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
March 26, 2019 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton will prepare an updated Comprehensive Plan under the authority 


of and procedures established by §66.1001(4), Wisconsin Statutes; and 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton on May 1, 2005, adopted the City of Stoughton Comprehensive 


Plan, and on July 11, 2017, amended the Plan,  under the authority of and procedures established by 


§66.1001(4), Wisconsin Statutes; and  


 WHEREAS, §66.1001(4)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, requires that the governing body of the local 


governmental unit adopt written procedures designed to foster public participation at every stage of the 


comprehensive plan preparation or amendment process, and that such written procedures shall provide for 


wide distribution of draft plan materials, an opportunity for the public to submit written comments on the 


plan materials, and a process for the governing body to respond to such comments; and 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton believes that meaningful public involvement in processes 


designed to periodically consider and update its Comprehensive Plan is important to assure that the resulting 


Plan meets the wishes and expectations of the public; and 


 WHEREAS, the attached “Public Participation Plan” includes procedures to foster public 


participation, ensure distribution of draft plan materials, provide opportunities for written comments on such 


materials, and provide mechanisms to respond to such comments. 


 WHEREAS, at a duly noticed public meeting held on March 11, 2019, the City of Stoughton Plan 


Commission adopted R - 3 - 2019 recommending that the Stoughton Common Council adopt the attached 


“Public Participation Plan” as its public participation procedures for updating the City’s Comprehensive 


Plan. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby 


adopts the procedures included in the “Public Participation Plan” as its public participation procedures 


for updating the City’s Comprehensive Plan, meeting the requirements of §66.1001(4)(a), Wisconsin 


Statutes. 


 


Approved this 26th day of March, 2019. 


 


      _________________________________ 


      Tim Swadley, Mayor 


ATTEST: 


  


________________________________ 


Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 
 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Comp Plan PPP Council 2019.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2019\3-11-19\PC Info\Kettle Park PH2 Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: February 28, 2019


To: Common Council and Plan Commissioners


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the March 11, 2019 Plan Commission Meeting and March 26, 2019
Common Council Meeting.


Request by Forward Development Group to discuss a Comprehensive Plan Amendment and
for approval of a public participation plan for Kettle Park West Phase 2.
This request is to discuss the Comprehensive Plan amendment process and for review/approval of
the Public Participation Plan to begin such process for Kettle Park West Phase 2. There are separate
resolutions, one for the Plan Commission and one for the Common Council. A recommendation
from the Plan Commission to the Common Council is necessary.











Public Participation Plan


Amendment of the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan


and
Westside Neighborhood Plan pertaining to the Kettle Park West Neighborhood


SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION


The City of Stoughton acknowledges that land planning and development is a dynamic process.


In order to maintain currency with overall general goals, policies and objectives of the adopted


Comprehensive Plan, adopted sub-area plans pertaining to specific locations in the community


may need to be created, amended or revised more frequently than the statutory decennial update.


A key component of the state’s planning legislation is to assure that communities establish


opportunities for local residents and community stakeholders to engage in community-wide


comprehensive planning and sub-area planning processes. The City believes public participation


will assure that resulting land use plans and development guidelines compliment and reflect the


community’s vision, goals, and values.


SECTION 2: PURPOSE


Based on Section 66.1001(4)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, the purpose of this Public Participation


Plan is to outline a procedure and framework for the plan amendment process: to foster


opportunities for public discussion and communication; to disseminate information; and to


engage with the Plan Commission and Common Council to evaluate and implement proposed


plan amendments.


SECTION 3: CONTEXT


Planning of the Kettle Park West development started in 2009 and, after extensive public


discussion, was approved in 2011. Initial phases of the project were implemented between 2011


and 2016 through the adoption of the Westside Neighborhood Plan (subsequently incorporated


into the City Comprehensive Plan), amendment of the Stoughton Urban Service Area,


annexation, land divisions and construction of infrastructure to create the Kettle Park West


Commercial Center, and the adoption of the Kettle Park West Preliminary Plat in 2016.


In response to dynamic market and economic conditions, the 2017 update to the City


Comprehensive Plan, and collaborative discussions with City leaders, Forward Development


Group LLC (FDG), has formulated conceptual revisions to the Westside Neighborhood Plan to


address land uses, park land dedications, and infrastructure improvements to maintain the


viability of the KPW development as it progresses into the next phase of implementation. Since


the City’s Comprehensive Plan incorporated the original vision of KPW as part of the Westside


Neighborhood Plan, it is necessary for the City to consider and adopt amendments to the


Comprehensive Plan to establish consistency between the plan and development entitlements


(zoning and land division) that will be required for continued development of the KPW area.







SECTION 4: POLICY GUIDELINES and PROCESS FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION


To foster public engagement in the planning process, the following guidelines will be


followed by the City:


• The City Plan Commission will provide policy guidance during the preparation of the


Plan Amendment. The Plan Commission will meet at least once during the course of the


amendment process and will provide an opportunity for public comment.


• All Plan Commission meetings are open to the public and will be publicized in


advance in accordance with statutory notice requirements.


• City staff will prepare and disseminate information to the public on the proposed


amendment by posting documents on the City’s website (www.ci.stoughton.wi.us) and


by providing a complete printed copy to be made available for public inspection during


regular business hours at the Stoughton Public Library.


• Kettle Park West LLC will conduct a public event to provide an opportunity for


interested individuals and organizations to obtain information, interact, and provide


comment regarding the proposed amendment. Kettle Park West LLC (KPW) will


maintain a summary of inquiries and communications received and KPW’s responses


thereto which will be provided to City staff for dissemination.


• The Plan Commission will review public comments from the public event and the


proposed amendment and at their discretion, recommend the Common Council conduct a


public hearing and consider adoption of the plan amendment.


• The Common Council, following a public hearing, announced by a Class 1 notice in


the City’s Official Newspaper of record, published at least 30-days prior to the public


hearing, may consider adoption, revision, or denial of the plan amendment. Following


the public hearing, revisions to the proposed amendment will be made as determined


by the Common Council.


S:\Planning\MPS\Comprehensive Plan\2019 Update\20190312 Draft Public Participation Plan.docx







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, March 11, 2019 at 6:00 pm
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI.


Members Present: Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Todd Barman; Matt Bartlett, Vice-Chair; Greg
Jenson; Phil Caravello; Tom Robinson; and Tom Selsor
Members Absent: None
Staff: Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning & Development and Michael Stacey, Zoning
Administrator
Press: Alex Cramer
Guests: Jim Bricker; Ken Schuh and Emily Bahr.


1. Call to order. Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.


2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of February 11, 2019.
Motion by Jenson to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Bartlett. Motion carried 7 – 0.


3. Council Representative Report. Bartlett stated the ordinance amendment for the keeping of
chickens was approved and there are several second readings scheduled for tomorrow night’s
agenda.


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments.
Scheel gave an overview of current developments as outlined in the packet of materials. There
were no questions.


5. Request by Mike Kohlbeck for approval of a building addition at Dairyland Electric, 340
Business Park Circle.
Scheel gave an overview of the request and noted the business park north committee recommends
approval. Ken Schuh of Dairyland Electric explained the addition is for future growth including 7
offices on the upper level and 12 future offices in the lower level.


Scheel gave an overview of the successful history of Dairyland Electric within the business park.


Bartlett questioned who regulates the covenants for the business park. Scheel stated the business
park north committee reviews any improvements to property in the park.


Barman questioned the lack of a lighting plan. Stacey stated they plan to use the previously
approved lighting plan since the lighting will still meet the needs of the site and the use is
primarily during the day. Scheel showed the proposed parking expansion which is not much
beyond the existing paving.


Motion by Jenson to approve the resolution as presented, 2nd by Bartlett. Motion carried 7 – 0.


6. Request by Forward Development Group to discuss a Comprehensive Plan Amendment and
for approval of a public participation plan for Kettle Park West Phase 2.
Jim Bricker of JSD Professional Services gave an overview of the request.


Scheel explained the process to review changes to the comprehensive plan.



mstacey

Highlight

Request by Forward Development Group to discuss a Comprehensive Plan Amendment and
for approval of a public participation plan for Kettle Park West Phase 2.
Jim Bricker of JSD Professional Services gave an overview of the request.
Scheel explained the process to review changes to the comprehensive plan.








Plan Commission Meeting Minutes
3/11/19
Page 2 of 2


Selsor questioned the northern connection in and out of the development. Jim Bricker explained
the Oak Opening to Deer Point connection is in discussion with the Town of Rutland and there is
anticipated to be an intergovernmental agreement between the City and Town. Selsor questioned
who is funding the project. Bricker stated that this will be coordinated with the WDOT project
which includes the intersection at Roby and Hwy 51. Scheel stated the comprehensive plan would
identify roadway, park, and uses but the details will need to be worked out after the
comprehensive plan amendment.


Barman stated the fourth bullet in section 4 indicates there will be a public event for public
comment and interaction but there is no mention of when the plan commission would review the
outcome of those comments. Barman suggested adding the review of public comments to the fifth
bullet.


Bartlett suggested 2 public events.


Jim Bricker stated they had planned to have the public event in the late afternoon to early evening
to allow citizens ample time to provide comments. The plan is to provide 2 presentations during
this timeframe. A notice will be provided in the paper and notices will be sent to all property
owners within 300 feet of Kettle Park West.


Jenson questioned the planned method used to gather info. Bricker stated comment cards and they
would take notes and provide a summary to the commission.


Selsor suggested a questionnaire after the public participation with key questions. Bricker stated
they could provide general questions while trying not to influence the public.


Motion by Jenson to recommend the Common Council approve the public participation plan,
while adding, “review of public comments from the public event” to bullet 5 of section 4, 2nd by
Barman. Motion carried 7 – 0.


7. Future agenda items.
Keeping of bees and chickens ordinance amendments. Kettle Park West Phase 2.


8. Adjournment. Motion by Jenson to adjourn at 6:40 pm, 2nd by Caravello. Motion carried 7 – 0.


Respectfully Submitted,


Michael P. Stacey


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2019\Planning Minutes 3-11-19.docx



mstacey

Highlight

Selsor questioned the northern connection in and out of the development. Jim Bricker explained
the Oak Opening to Deer Point connection is in discussion with the Town of Rutland and there is
anticipated to be an intergovernmental agreement between the City and Town. Selsor questioned
who is funding the project. Bricker stated that this will be coordinated with the WDOT project
which includes the intersection at Roby and Hwy 51. Scheel stated the comprehensive plan would
identify roadway, park, and uses but the details will need to be worked out after the
comprehensive plan amendment.
Barman stated the fourth bullet in section 4 indicates there will be a public event for public
comment and interaction but there is no mention of when the plan commission would review the
outcome of those comments. Barman suggested adding the review of public comments to the fifth
bullet.
Bartlett suggested 2 public events.
Jim Bricker stated they had planned to have the public event in the late afternoon to early evening
to allow citizens ample time to provide comments. The plan is to provide 2 presentations during
this timeframe. A notice will be provided in the paper and notices will be sent to all property
owners within 300 feet of Kettle Park West.




mstacey

Highlight

Jenson questioned the planned method used to gather info. Bricker stated comment cards and they
would take notes and provide a summary to the commission.
Selsor suggested a questionnaire after the public participation with key questions. Bricker stated
they could provide general questions while trying not to influence the public.
Motion by Jenson to recommend the Common Council approve the public participation plan,
while adding, “review of public comments from the public event” to bullet 5 of section 4, 2nd by
Barman. Motion carried 7 – 0.






		10a-Comp Plan PPP Council 2019.pdf

		10b-Public Participation Plan - Comp Plan Amend 2019.pdf



